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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, it is my pleasure to present the Group’s consolidated financial results
for the 201 | Financial Year and to give an overview of the Group’s strategy and business
outlook.

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The 2011 Financial Year was a very challenging year for the industry. Although the world
economy recovered with a reasonable upswing in the first half of 2010, the momentum
subdued with a rise in unemployment in most industrial economies in the latter half of the
year. Inflationary pressure was mounting, in particular, the prices of cotton and cotton yarns
reached record high levels. During the year under review, cotton prices went up by more than
double, a result of global shortage and poor harvest in Pakistan and China which made the
supply concern prominent. As cotton is the major raw material for producing cotton yarn, the
sharp hikes in cotton price had exerted pressure on our operating cost. Though the cotton
price had eased slightly in the last few months, however, with the volatility of cotton prices, the
upsurge of labour costs and the appreciation of Renminbi, we faced unprecedented challenges
during the year under review. Despite the tough and fragile business climate, the Group
spearheaded with its growth and operating strategies: a combination of improved efficient
operational capabilities, stringent cost control, financial vigilance, strong commitment to our
customers, and investment for the future.

The financial year under review saw the Group continues to stay as one of the strongest
players in the highly competitive textile industry. Driven by strengthened marketing activities,
we have registered consolidated revenue of HK$7,180.7 million for the 2011 Financial Year,
which is a growth of 22.1% over previous year. The Group’s sales volume achieved a growth
rate of 6.8% and reached 209.| million pounds, compared to 195.8 million pounds of the last
financial year.

Profit attributable to shareholders amounted to HK$876.4 million, while earnings per share
was HK$ 0.61, compared to HK$0.56 in the previous financial year, representing an increase of
8.9%.

The Board has proposed a final dividend of HKI9 cents per share. Together with an interim
dividend of HK 14 cents per share, the total dividend for the 201 | Financial Year will be HK33
cents per share.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The 2011 Financial Year was a year of consolidating the Group’s core pillars. With a reputable
history of service and product reliability, we continued to strengthen our position as one of
the leading fabric manufacturers in the industry. The Group persisted to maintain strict
monitoring of cost control, optimisation improvements of existing production process and
introduction of technological innovations to enhance operational efficiency. The Group also
regularly adopted programs to achieve effective inventory management by analysing inventory
adjustments.

During the 2011 Financial Year, the Group took the initiative to diversify its production base to
Vietnam by establishing a joint venture with Crystal International Limited, GSI Trading Hong
Kong Limited and Toray Industries (H.K)) Limited for knitted fabric manufacturing business in
Vietnam. This joint venture enjoys access to market in Japan with no tariffs and quotas and the
low operating cost in Vietnam offers a cost effective production base for the Group. | am
delighted to inform you that the investment licence was approved by the government
authorities of Vietnam earlier this year and construction plans for the production facilities
would be underway soon.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW (Cont'd)

In November 2010, the Company was awarded China Knitting Industry Technology Award (F
B #4577 Z B F B 82) by the 4th Council of the China Knitting Industry Association (R
HETXREEMERES) The award recognizes the Group’s dedicated effort in
technology innovation in textiles industry. In addition, Mr. Choi Kin Chung, our Emeritus
Chairman and non-executive Director, was awarded the China Knitting Industry Lifetime
Achievement Award (F Bl #4577 % 8 F BX 31 #2) to recognize Mr. Choi's dedication and
contribution to the textiles industry.

As disclosed in the various announcements made by the Company in the past few months, the
Group had disposed part of its shareholding interest in PT Sri Lanka under the Pre-IPO
Private Placement to certain institutional and non-institutional investors in May this year. The
Pre-IPO Private Placement was very successful. The Proposed Spin-off of PT Sri Lanka for
separate listing on the Main Board of the Colombo Stock Exchange is progressing well. This
move will undoubtedly enhance the profile of PT Sri Lanka and provide the operation a
funding platform for future business development. After the PT Sri Lanka IPO, we will still be
the largest shareholder of PT Sri Lanka and will continue to enjoy the benefits from the
growth and development of the business through our shareholding interest.

OUTLOOK

We look forward to the next year with confidence. We will continue to build on the
achievements made this year. We will implement further measures to improve our production
yield and quality assurance, enlarge product mix and technical capabilities to capture the
increasing demand of fabrics from different markets underpinned by the rebound in the global
economy. However, recent events in the Middle East, North Africa and Japan, coupled with less
than satisfactory economic data from developed economies are yet another reminders of the
ongoing uncertainties in the global economy. Other factors that call for caution include
fluctuating commodity prices, appreciation of the Renminbi and increasing operating costs. We
will ensure that the Group will remain focused on sustainable growth and progressively
strengthen our base in terms of products, technologies, production capacities and
organisational efficiency.

With our strong business strategy and competent execution, we believe that we have the
unique capabilities to forge ahead.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation to
our loyal customers, business partners, suppliers and bankers for their continuous support to
the Group at such challenging times and | would also like to express my gratitude to all the
colleagues who endeavoured to lead the Group into another year of success.

I would also thank our shareholders for their kind support and confidence in the Group
during the past year.

On behalf of the Board

Wan Wai Loi
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 24 June 201 |
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEwWED T

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

The 2011 Financial Year was marked by the world economy’s entry into a recovery phase,
whereby we saw an overall growth in global output and an increase in consumer confidence
and spending. Unfortunately the global economy was also severely floundering with high public
deficits, debt problems and rising commodity prices. The prices of cotton and cotton yarns had
reached record high levels owing to global supply shortage driven by production fall in
Pakistan and India. As cotton is the major raw material for producing cotton yarn, the sharp
hikes in cotton price had exerted foremost pressure on our operating cost. Though the cotton
price had eased recently, however, with the volatility in cotton prices, coupled with the
upsurge of production costs and the appreciation of Renminbi, the industry faced
unprecedented challenges during the year under review. Despite the still tough operating
climate, for the Group, it was a period of differentiation, improved operating efficiency and
continued industrial consolidation. The Group performed satisfactorily against the backdrop of
challenging economic environment.

Across all the Group's markets, the successful execution of our effective business strategy
drove consistently satisfactory financial outcomes. For the 2011 Financial Year, the Group
achieved revenue of HK$ 7,180.7 million, representing an increase of 22.1% as compared to
the previous financial year (2010: HK$ 5,883.4 million). The revenue increase was primarily due
to the production capacity expansion and increase in average selling price which was driven by
the high yarn cost and sales mix. Our total sales volume increased by 6.8% to 209.1 million
pounds whereas our average selling price has improved by 14.3% to HK$34.4 per pound.

During the 2011 Financial Year, surging oil and commodity prices created upward price
pressure for yarns and other raw materials. The advancement in the value of the Renminbi also
increased our cost. In view of this, the Group continued to scrutinize production and
operation cost carefully to mitigate the cost pressure and maintain our competitiveness.
Hence, the Group's operating profit and the gross profit reached HK$1,095.9 million and
HK$1,290.0 million respectively, representing a year-on-year increase of [3.1% and 5.6%
respectively. Gross profit margin and operating profit margin were 18.0% and 15.3%
respectively.

The Group's other income, which consists of subcontracting income, sales of residual
materials, rental income and government grants, was HK$90.9 million (2010: HK$67.2 million),
representing a jump of 35.3%. The increase was mainly due to the higher selling prices for
residual materials as resulted from the rising commodity prices and the receipt of government
grants during the year under review.

For the year under review, net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company was
HK$876.4 million, which represents a modest increase of 9.1% over the previous year of
HK$803.2 million. Net profit margin was 12.2% (2010: 13.7%) and earnings per share was
HK$0.61 (2010: HK$0.56).

With the improved operational efficiency and enhanced production scheduling, the Group has
managed to reduce customers’ claims for late delivery significantly. As a result, the Group’s
distribution and selling expenses decreased 32.6% from HK$135.7 million in the previous year
to HK$91.4 million. As a percentage of total revenue, distribution and selling expenses
decreased from 2.3% to 1.3% during the 201 | Financial Year.

General and administrative expenses were HK$193.5 million (2010: HK$184.2 million),
representing an increase of 5.0% from last year. The Group maintained an efficient cost
mechanism during the year and will continue to ensure cost reduction goals are regularly
evaluated and achieved. General and administrative expenses represented about 2.7% of total
revenue (2010: 3.1%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (Contd)

Focused Development on Customers, Products and Markets

The process of industry consolidation triggered by the global financial crisis continued during
the 201 | Financial Year. The Group, with its strong financial position and solid footing in the
industry, further strengthened itself to become one of the leading players. By sharpening its
competitive edge in value-added product offering, and improving in production facilities, the
Group was able to work with existing core customer base as well as attracting new quality
customers.

Despite the chaotic signals of the scale of the economic recovery, there was an increase in
purchase orders from the Group's customers. Our core clientele base performed strongly in
the retail market as consumers returned to the stores and shopping malls. In China, where
consumer spending continued to grow rapidly, we saw an encouraging increase in orders from
our renowned customers. The top five customers and brand owners accounted for
approximately 49.5% and 52.2% respectively of the Group’s total revenue during the year
under review, versus 47.6% and 50.9% of the previous year.

As part of the strategy of market diversification, we continued our efforts to develop the
mainland market. China has experienced extraordinary economic growth in the last two
decades, resulting in the rise of demand for quality apparel products. Our proactive business
development and steady marketing strategy ensure the Group is well placed to take advantage
of further expected growth.

Expanded Production Capacity and Improved Operating Efficiency

Structural improvement works to expand production capacity were carried out in the Group’s
factory in Panyu, China. The newly added infrastructure and advanced machinery helped
contribute to the Group's increase in operational efficiency and cost effectiveness.
Improvements in dyeing machines and water treatment facilities were made.

With a focus on cost reduction and improved operation, investments in technological
solutions and [T systems were made. IT solutions helped provide data and the correlations on
purchases, warehousing, production, inventory control and logistics. This allowed the Group to
monitor the process more effectively. The concerted approach further optimized the Group's
operational efficiency and lowered production cost.

Environmental Best Practice and Awards

The Group is committed to corporate social responsibility and environmental protection. The
Group actively pursues work safety as a company policy and ensures that safety standards in
the manufacturing procedures are met. We are dedicated to conducting all our activities in an
environmentally responsible and prudent manner, thereby minimizing impact and risks in the
environment. The Group’s environmental best practices have earned recognition from both
local and regional authorities as well as leading environment agencies.

It has been a honor that our practice of good environmental effort has been well recognized
with the Panyu plant accredited Environmentally Trustworthy Enterprise-Green Label (R{R
E1 % — 5212 7R) by the Guangdong Environmental Protection Bureau (B R & IRIB (R
/) and the Certificate of Merit awarded by the Environmental Campaign Committee, Hong
Kong for environmental excellence. In addition, we were the first textile entity in China
awarded the Certificate of Registration issued by BSI (China) on meeting the Energy
Management System GB/T 23331 . We also received Greenhouse Gases Emissions Verification
Statement from BSI (China) for meeting the principals set out in SO 14064. We will continue
to reinforce environmental compliance through audits and reviews and are ready to meet
ever-higher standards of environment performance.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEwWED T

BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont4d)

Environmental Best Practice and Awards (Cont'd)

With our solid footing in the textile industry and our continuous investment in technology,
several of our premium products were awarded Honor Certificates by the Guangzhou Textile
Industry Association (/N T #1477 2% &) and we were also awarded an Advanced
Collective Title of the Country's Textile Industry (2 Bl 45 4 T % 5t # S 8 1 9%) Certificate by
both the Division of Human Resources and Social Security (A 71 & R4 € {REED) and the
China Textile Industry Association (R BI%5 # T % %€ ) . We were also awarded China Knitting
Industry Technology Award (F B3 #1417 ¥ BHEZ B Bl #2) by the 4th Council of the China
Knitting Industry Association (R EIET 4 T & £ MUEEEE). In addition, Mr. Choi Kin
Chung, the emeritus Chairman and non-executive director, was awarded the China Knitting
Industry Lifetime Achievement Award (F Bl # 817 2 48 & B 3 2%) to recognize Mr. Choi's
contribution, dedication and achievement in the textiles industry.

The Chinese Government is committed to ensuring the industry participants to operate their
business activities in environmental responsible standard. In line with this, we, as a foremost
fabric manufacturer, not only improve our techniques and measures with aims at conforming
to environmental protection standard set down by the government, and also articulate our
commitment in environmental protection and share our best practice. We took part in the
consultative committee in formulating policies and laying down the standard in respect of the
calculation method of water usage in knitted goods, wet processing and unit consumption
quota (BT 8 EN 22 mEUKET B 91E R B FEE R TEH8) organized by the China Textile Industry
Association and that such standard has been formally adopted by the Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology (T3 A1{5 81t ZB) as textile industry model.

Diversification of Production Base

The establishment of the joint venture for knitted fabric manufacturing business in Vietnam
was progressing well. The investment license was approved by the government authorities in
Vietnam recently and the plans for construction of the factory was underway. It is projected
that commercial production will start in two years' time.

The construction of the fabric mill in Bangladesh has been put on hold until the natural gas
supply issue is resolved. The Bangladesh joint venture group currently operates a small
garment production facility to maintain a presence in the country and to enhance our
understanding of the local business environment. In view of the change, the Group’s joint
venture in Bangladesh has been scaled back in the year under review. It is anticipated that the
financial position of the joint venture will be significantly improved in the coming financial
years.

Proposed Spin-off of PT Sri Lanka

The Group had disposed part of its shareholding interest in its Sri Lanka subsidiary under the
Pre-IPO Private Placement in May this year. The Pre-IPO Private Placement was very
successful and the gross proceeds received by the Group before deducting the related legal
and professional expenses is approximately US$1 1.4 million (approximately HK$89.1 million).
Immediately after the Pre-IPO Private Placement, the Group’s shareholding in the PT Sri Lanka
was reduced from 60% to 45.57% and PT Sri Lanka would be accounted for by the Group on
equity basis as an associate starting from June 201 I.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (Contd)

Proposed Spin-off of PT Sri Lanka (Cont'd)

The listing of the PT Sri Lanka on the Main Board of the Colombo Stock Exchange is progressing
well. The approval for listing has been received from the Colombo Stock Exchange and it is
anticipated that the listing will be completed by August this year. Upon the success of listing, the
PT Sri Lanka will issue new shares to the public and the equity interest held by the Group is
expected to be further diluted to 40%. Nevertheless, the Group will still be the largest
shareholder of the PT Sri Lanka and will continue to enjoy the benefits from the growth and
development of the business through our shareholding interest. The gross proceeds to be
received by the PT Sri Lanka before deducting the related legal and professional expenses is
expected to be approximately US$11.0 million (approximately HK$85.9 million).

This move will further strengthen the financial position of both the Group and that of the PT
Sri Lanka. In addition, the Proposed Spin-off will enhance the profile of the PT Sri Lanka and
provide the operation a funding platform for future business development.

In accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Standard 27 (Revised), the Group will re-measure
its 40% retained interest in the PT Sri Lanka to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. As a result, a total gain on disposal (including the change
in the carrying amount of the Group’s 40% interest in the PT Sri Lanka) of approximately
HK$230 million and a goodwill for the remaining 40% equity interest in the PT Sri Lanka of
approximately HK$ 150 million are expected to be recognized in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the financial year ending 31 March 2012.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Information

As at 31 March 201, our cash and bank balances and time deposits totalled HK$947.5 million
(2010: HK$689.4 million), including HK$382.8 million, the equivalent of HK$310.9 million in
US$, the equivalent of HK$231.8 million in Renminbi and the equivalent of HK$22.0 million in
other currencies. The cash and bank balances and time deposits are to finance the Group's
working capital and capital expenditure plans.

The loans are mostly short-term, principally ranging from | to 12 months, and are mainly
denominated in US dollars.

For the 2011 Financial Year, the Group's total assets amounted to HK$5,299.9 million (2010:
HK$4,656.3 million), representing an increase of 13.8%. Non-current assets and current assets
were HK$1,572.2 million and HK$3,727.7 million respectively. The above assets were financed
by current liabilities of HK$1,383.1 million, non-current liabilities of HK$29.2 million, non-
controlling interests of HK$87.0 million and equity attributable to shareholders of HK$3,800.6
million.

As at 31 March 2011, the current ratio (which is calculated on the basis of current assets over
current liabilities) was 2.7 (2010: 2.2). The gearing ratio, being the ratio of total debts
(including current and non-current borrowings and finance lease obligations) to total equity,
was 4.5% (2010: 2.2%). The increase in gearing ratio was attributable mainly to an increase in
borrowings by PT Sri Lanka. As at 31 March 2011, the Group was in a net cash position of
HK$773.3 million (2010: HK$615.0 million).

The Group adopted measures and fine-tuned its capital expenditure in response to the
market demand. During the year under review, total capital expenditure declined 18.7% to
HK$205.1 million (2010: HK$252.3 million), which was mainly used to purchase plant and
machinery, and on construction projects of the Panyu Plant and others.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEwWED T

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont'd)

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the US dollar and Renminbi. The Group manages its foreign exchange
risks by performing regular review and monitoring its foreign exchange exposure. The Group
hedges against the exposure and reduce the risk involved as appropriate.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2011, the Group's bank loans of HK$160.5 million (2010: HK$24.6 million)
were secured by certain properties, plants and equipment with carrying amount of HK$88.8
million (2010: HK$86.4 million) and inventories with net realizable value of HK$77.8 million
(2010: HK$77.6 million).

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had approximately 7,360 full-time employees (2010: 8,064).
There is no significant change in the Group's remuneration policy. The Group’s remuneration
package for its employees includes salary, bonuses, allowances and retirement benefits, based
on employee’s performance, skills and knowledge. The Group will continue to provide regular
training and competitive remuneration packages to its staff. The Group also provides additional
benefits to its employees, such as subsidised accommodation and meals for workers at the
production facilities, and accident and medical insurance.

The Group has adopted a Share Option Scheme. Pursuant to the scheme, the Company
granted options to eligible employees. The amortised fair value of share options granted, which
totaled approximately HK$1.4 million was charged to the consolidated income statement for
the 201 | Financial Year. (2010: HK$6.8 million).

Dividends

The Board proposed to pay a final dividend of HK 19 cents (2010: HK |7 cents) per share for
the 2011 Financial Year. Together with an interim dividend of HK 14 cents (2010: HK 13 cents)
per share, the total dividend for the 201 | Financial Year amount to HK 33 cents (2010: HK 52
cents) per share. The final dividend, if approved by shareholders at the forthcoming AGM, will
be paid on or around 29 August 201 I.

Outlook and Prospect

Looking ahead to the next financial year and beyond, the Group expects that the competitive
pressure and unstable economic climate under which the Group operates will remain.
However, we are confident that the Group will be able to reach new targets as we continue
to leverage our strengths, bring innovations and values to customers, and pursue growth
initiatives. Concurrently, we will continue to manage our Group with financial discipline, with a
strong focus on cost curtailment and revenue generation. The Group firmly believes that we
will be able to deliver satisfactory returns for our shareholders against the business challenges
ahead.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WAN Wai Loi, aged 61, is an executive Director and Chairman and a founder of the
Group. Mr. Wan is responsible for production of the products and the formulation of the
overall corporate direction and business strategies of the Group. Mr.Wan has over 38 years of
experience in the textile industry. He obtained a Bachelor of Science Degree in Chemical
Engineering from Taiwan National Cheng Kung University. Mr. Wan joined the Group in 1997
and was appointed as a Director in 2004. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Group.

Mr. TSANG Kang Po, aged 60, is an executive Director and the Vice Chairman and a founder
of the Group. Mr. Tsang is responsible for sales and marketing and the formulation of the
overall corporate direction and business strategies for the Group. Mr. Tsang has over 32 years
of experience in the textile industry. Mr. Tsang obtained a MBA degree from The Open
University of Hong Kong and a Master of Science in Business Economics from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Tsang joined the Group in 1997 and was appointed as a Director
in 2004. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. LAM Wing Tak, aged 60, is an executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of our
Company. Mr. Lam is responsible for sales and marketing and the formulation of the overall
corporate direction and business strategies for the Group. Mr. Lam has over 36 years of
experience in the textile industry. Mr. Lam obtained a MBA degree from The University of
Macau and a Bachelor of Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Lam is a member of Board of Trustee of New Asia College, The Chinese University of
Hong Kong. Mr. Lam joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed as a Director in 2004. He is
also a director of various subsidiaries of the Group.

Dr. LAM King Man, aged 55, is an executive Director. Dr. Lam is responsible for overseeing
manufacturing, research and development. Dr. Lam has over 29 years of experience in the
textile, garment, dyeing and finishing industry. Dr. Lam obtained a Ph.D. degree from the
Postgraduate School of Colour Chemistry and Colour Technology at the University of
Bradford, United Kingdom and a Higher Diploma in Textile Chemistry from Hong Kong
Polytechnic. He is a Chartered Colourist and a Fellow of The Society of Dyers and Colourists,
United Kingdom. Dr. Lam joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed as a Director in 2004.
He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. LAM Hing Chau, Leon, aged 53, is an executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary of our Group. Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences from
the University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, CPA Australia, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Lam also holds Master’s degrees
in Business Administration, Information Systems, Applied Finance and Electronic Commerce.
Prior to joining the Group, he was the executive director, vice president and chief financial
officer of CK Life Sciences Int'l (Holdings) Inc., a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Lam joined the Group in 2005 and was appointed as a Director in 2009 and Company
Secretary in 2010.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHOI Kin Chung, aged 75, is a non-executive Director and a founder of the Group. Mr.
Choi co-founded our Group in 1997 and has been the chairman of the Group since its
inception until 2005. Mr. Choi is the emeritus chairman of the Company and is a director of
several subsidiaries of the Group. He has approximately 43 years of experience in the textile
industry. Mr. Choi was educated in 2 F3E T K2 » #2 & (School of Architecture, South
China University of Technology) and is a Honorary Professor of the University. He is also a
Honorary Citizen of Guangzhou City and Jiangmen City. Mr. Choi has been awarded # B 1 4
TTEL F AL (China Knitting Industry Lifetime Achievement Award)by Bl &1 45 T %1%
CEEEES (4th Coundil of the China Knitting Industry Association)in 2010. Mr. Choi
was appointed as a Director in 2004.

Mr. IP Ping Im, aged 74, is a non-executive Director. He is a co-founder and senior partner of
our Group. Mr. Ip has over 34 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr. Ip was appointed
as a Director in 2004. He is also a director of several subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. LAU Yiu Tong, aged 63, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Lau has over 34 years of
experience in the textile industry. Mr. Lau holds a Higher Diploma in Textile Technology from
the Hong Kong Technical College. He is a member of the General Committee of Federation of
Hong Kong Industries. Mr. Lau was appointed as a non-executive Director in 2007. He is also a
director of several subsidiaries of the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 59, is an independent non-executive Director. He is
currently the executive chairman of Café de Coral Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed
company which he joined in 1984, and has considerable experience in planning and
management. Mr. Chan is also an independent non-executive director of Starlite Holdings
Limited since 1993, Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited since 2006 and Tse Sui Luen
Jewellery (International) Limited since 2010 and a non-executive director of Tao Heung
Holdings Limited in 2007, all four companies are listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Arts, a Master degree in City Planning from the
University of Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary Doctorate Degree in Business Administration
and is also bestowed as Honorary Fellow from Lingnan University. He is currently an executive
committee member of the Hong Kong Retail Management Association, the general committee
member of the Employers' Federation of Hong Kong, an appointed member of the Quality
Tourism Services Association, a full member of the Canadian and the Hong Kong Institute of
Planners, a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Marketing, a Court Member of the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology, the Honorary President of Hong Kong Foodstuffs
Association as well as being appointed by the HKSAR Government as member of the Hong
Kong Tourism Board. He is also the Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of
Marketing and the chairman of the Business Enterprise Management Centre of the Hong Kong
Management Association. Mr. Chan was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in 2007.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Mr. NG Ching Wah, aged 62, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Ng has over 24
years of senior management experience in the telecommunications industry. Mr. Ng is
currently an independent director of China Digital TV Holding Co. Ltd., a New York Stock
Exchange listed company and director and member of the executive committee for Advanced
Info Service Public Company Limited, a Thailand listed company. He was a non-executive
director of HKC International Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed company. He was the chief
executive officer of Hong Kong CSL Limited. He was the chief executive officer of SmarTone
Telecommunications Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed company and the President of
PCCW Mobility Services Limited. Mr. Ng is the Honorary Advisor of the Communications
Association of Hong Kong and was a member of the Digital 21 Strategy Advisory Committee
(D21SAC). Mr. Ng graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1975, with a
Bachelor of Business and Administration. Mr. Ng was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in 2007.

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel, aged 54, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Sze has
senior management experience in the private and investment banking industry serving high
net worth clients and institutions. He currently serves as deputy chief executive of EFG Bank
AG, Hong Kong Branch for Asia Pacific Region. He was the managing director, head of
investment of Citi Wealth Management for Asia Pacific region, the chief executive officer of
Asia-Pacific for International Private Bank, Barclays Wealth and an executive director in the
private clients division at Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, Hong Kong. Mr. Sze holds a Master of
Business from the University of Newcastle, Australia. He is a Fellow of CPA Australia. Mr. Sze
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in 2007.
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Directors’ Report
EE/WE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the 201 | Financial Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in manufacturing and trading of textile products.

An analysis of the performance of the Group for the 201 | Financial Year by geographical
location of business operation is set out in note 5 to the financial statements,

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal activities of the Company's subsidiaries at 31 March 201 | are set out
in note 8 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the 201 | Financial Year are set out in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 38 to 39 of this
annual report.

An interim dividend of HK 14 cents (2010:HK |3 cents) per share was paid on 6 January 201 |
to shareholders. The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK 9 cents
(2010:HK 17 cents) per share to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of
Members on 22 August 201 I.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members will be closed from 9 August 2011 to 12 August 201 (both days
inclusive) for the purpose of determining the identity of members who are entitled to attend
and vote at the AGM, during which period no transfer of shares can be registered. In order to
qualify for attending the AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
must be lodged with the Company's Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 17121716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 8 August 201 I.

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 18 August 201 | to 22 August
2011 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining the identity of members who are
entitled to the final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2011, during which period no
transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend,
all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 17 August 201 I.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the 201 | Financial Year are set
out in note |9 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2011, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$2,381 million (2010: HK$ 1,927 million), comprising the share premium, the capital reserve,
share-based reserve and the retained earnings of the Company.

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, in addition to the retained
earnings of the Company, the share premium and capital reserves of the Company are also
available for distribution to shareholders provided that the Company will be able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business immediately following the date on
which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company during the 201 |
Financial Year are set out in note |8 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Expenditure of approximately HK$205 million (2010: HK$252 million) was incurred during the
2011 Financial Year primarily to expand the production capacity of the Group.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 7
to the financial statements.

DONATIONS
During the 2011 Financial Year, the Group made charitable and other donation totalling
approximately HK$7,430,000 (2010: HK$12,000).

CAPITALIZED INTERESTS
During the 201 | Financial Year, no interest had been capitalized (2010: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and consolidated balance sheet of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page | 18 of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the 2011 Financial Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted for
approximately 49.5% of the Group’s total sales and sales to the Group's largest customer
included therein amounted to approximately 22.0%. Purchases from the Group’'s five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 34.9% of the Group'’s total purchases and purchase
from the Group's largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately 19.9%.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any
interests in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers noted above.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company's listed securities during the 201 | Financial Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the law of Cayman
Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the 201 | Financial Year was the Company, its holding companies, or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the 201 | Financial Year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. WAN Wai Loi (Chairman)

Mr. TSANG Kang Po (Vice Chairman)

Mr. LAM Wing Tak (Chief Executive Officer)
Dr. LAM King Man

Mr. LAM Hing Chau, Leon

Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHOI Kin Chung

Mr. IP Ping Im

Mr. LAU Yiu Tong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. NG Ching Wah

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel

Pursuant to article 130 of the Articles, at every AGM one-third of the Directors for the time
being (o if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director (including
those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement at least once every three
years. Accordingly, Mr. Wan Wai Loi, Dr. Lam King Man, Mr. Lau Yiu Tong and Mr. Ng Ching Wah
will retire by rotation from the Board at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election as Directors.

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS

Profiles of the above Directors are set out on pages || to |3 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’” SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors had entered into a service agreement with the Company for
an initial term of two years with effect from | April 2007. Each service agreement will
continue thereafter until terminated by either party by giving to the other party at least six
months’ prior notice in writing.

Each of the non-executive and independent non-executive Directors had been appointed for
an initial term of two years with effect from | May 2007. The term of the appointment has
been extended for a further two years and ended 30 April 201 . The term has further been
extended for a period of two years from | May 2011 to 30 April 2013. All Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles and the Listing Rules.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company has
a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

16
2010 /2011 Annual Report &3

B=Z
WO ER BN REEARE AL ES
mT :

HTES

FERELE (EF)
RN (BLE)
MEREE (TTHARE)
AEXEL

MBS LA

FUTES
HEEREE
EmmEE
HRELLE

BUKHTES
[CXp s
hBELE
MBS kA

REZRANE10K =92 —EFWMAHETR
“WREE UREEETIR=92 ) BRERK
REFAERFESER REF (BRMAFIGNZ
E)RARIPB=FRERE—R - Bt - FERAE
BOMEXEL BRRAENEEERERRE
BREOZBRBFAREHFESE  HREAERYL
BEREL -

EEZvEN
FREEZEGNFINAFHREIZE13E o
BEEvRBEAL

BHOTESDBARRR RS HiE - £HH2007
FARABER  NFRUME - BHRBAHNER
RESER BEEF-—HAZ-—HEETIRA
EAEEBALLANRL -

BHDTEERBUIFRTES 2EHAR2007F5
A1BR  IFAERT ZAFHEERTRER
201MF4A30H 1L - EEHEE—FTTEREARM
£ H201MF581BE2013F48308 1 - 2%
ZEARBERMAAR ETRARERT

BRARAIRERREFASERECZ EENE
BARBHEMMBARTEEMR —F AL
AFEHRE OETERERMN 2RBEEH -



REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the Directors are reviewed and determined by the Remuneration
Committee on the basis of the relevant Director's experience, responsibility and the time
devoted to the business of the Group.

Details of the emoluments of every Director for the 201 | Financial Year is set out in note 26
to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance, to which the Company, or its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the 201 | Financial Year or at any time during the 2011 Financial Year.

COMPETING INTEREST AND NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING

None of Directors had, either directly or indirectly, an interest in a business which causes or
may cause any significant competition with the business of the Group and any other conflicts
of interest which any such person has or may have with the Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions of shareholders of the Company passed on 27 April 2007,
the Company adopted the Share Option Scheme subject to the terms and conditions therein.
The options shall expire on 18 July 2017.The closing price of the share of the Company
immediately before the date of grant was HK$4.86 per share.

A.  Summary of the Share Option Scheme
. Purpose
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the Company with a
flexible means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to Eligible Persons (as defined in paragraph 2 below).

2. Participants
The Board may grant options to any “Eligible Person”, namely an employee,
director or non-executive director (including INED) of any Member of the Group.

“Member of the Group” means the Company, any holding company, subsidiaries
or affiliates of the Company or other companies or associated companies of the
Company which the Board determines will be subject to the Share Option
Scheme.

3. Maximum number of Shares
The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of Listing of the Shares
on the Stock Exchange on 18 May 2007 (the “Listing Date"), representing
143,293,600 Shares or 30% of the Shares of the Company in issue from time to
time.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Contd)

A.

Summary of the Share Option Scheme (Contd)

4. Maximum entitlement of each participant
The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each Eligible Person (including exercised and outstanding options) in
any |2-month period must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue at the date of
grant of the option.

5. Time of exercise of options and duration of Share Option Scheme

(9)

(b)

General vesting period

The general vesting period for options granted under the Share Option
Scheme is 5 anniversary of grant date unless the Board specifies a different
vesting period under the terms of the offer. The option period will not be
more than 10 years from the date of grant.

An option may be exercised to the extent that it has vested and any
performance conditions or targets set by the Board have been met.

Duration of the Share Option Scheme
The duration of the Share Option Scheme shall be 10 years from the
Listing Date.

6.  Exercise price and payment on grant

(@)

(b)

Exercise price

The exercise price for the Shares under the Share Option Scheme shall be
the price determined by the Board and notified to the option holder which
shall not be less than the higher of:

(i)  the average closing price of the Shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets;

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated on the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheet of the Shares on the date of grant of the option;
and

(i) the nominal value of the Shares.
Payment on grant

Eligible Persons are not required to pay for the acceptance of an option
granted to them.

7. Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme will terminate automatically at midnight on the day
immediately before the [0th anniversary of the Listing Date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

B.

Options granted by the Company

As at 31 March 2011, options to subscribe for an aggregate of 18,630,000 Shares
granted to a director and eligible full-time employees pursuant to the terms of the
Share Option Scheme remained outstanding, details of which were as follows:

Directors’ Report
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BRETE (2)

B. AAFCEHzERE
R2011E3 8318 - RIEBERE 2 2 (57
T-2BERAEREBEEURELA
18,630,000/ A 2 & i 17 2 8 % #E 1A K 1T
- BHEFBOT

Number of share options

Exercise BREZE
Price As at Changes during the period As at
Date of fI#f8  Exercisable 01/04/2010 BRET 31/03/201 1
Grantee Grant HK$ Period R2010F Granted Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 742011
ARA R AH BT e 4B1H gt 7 ¥ ] 3A31H
Executive Director
HITES
Lam Hing Chau, Leon 18/07/2007 5.04 18/07/2010- 600,000 — — — — 600,000
MRE 17/0712017
Eligible Employees 18/07/2007 5.04 18/07/2010- 18,810,000 — — 780,000 — 18,030,000
fEKESR 17/0712017
19,410,000 — — 780,000 — 18,630,000

The fair value of options granted is approximately at an average of HK$1.222 per share
on the basis of binominal model (the “Model"). The significant inputs into the Model
were the closing price of the Share of the Company at the date of grant of HK$4.8 per
share, annual risk-free interest rate of approximately 4.8%, an expected option life of
approximate 6 years, expected volatility of 32% and annual dividend yield of 4%. The
amortised fair value of share options for the year ended 31 March 201 | amounting to
approximately HK$1.4 million (2010: HK$6.8 million) was charged to the consolidated
income statement.

The Model was developed for use in estimating fair value of traded options that are fully
transferable. The Model requires input of highly subjective assumptions, including the
expected stock price volatility. Since the Company's share options have characteristics
significantly different from those of traded options, and because change in the subjective
input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, the Model does not
necessarily provide a reliable measure of the fair value of the share options.

Save as disclosed above, no option had been granted to the Directors, chief executive

or substantial shareholders of the Company or their respective associates under the
Share Option Scheme since its adoption.
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ESRWE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND EERAATARDNEBROZEZRKE

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 201 1, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executive of R201ME3R31H » EZERARATREZER AR
the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its A EEMBREE (FX RESRBERAEXV
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the ) ERG  HERNREST - BEERBEESR
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or as otherwise notified to the HERGIE32RATFENBTMACHIBEEZ
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows: EFHENGADERBRAOHERRARNT

Long positions in Shares

ARARARBZHA

Number of issued Shares held and nature of interest

HERTAXARGHE RERNLE
Corporate Approximate
Interests percentage of
Personal Family (interests of issued share
Interests Interests a controlled Trusts and capital of
(beneficial (interests corporation) similar the Company
Name of Director/ owner) of spouse) HEES interests Total REAH
Chief Executive A S REES (RERZH FEk Interests BRITRA
ES THERER (EREEA) (BEzER  HERZER BilER BHAE ZBREIH
Choi Kin Chung — — — 171,102,000 171,102,000 [1.94%
g (Note 1)
(Kfaz 1)
Ip Ping Im — 2,000,000 401,055,000 — 403,055,000 28.13%
Emi (Note 2)
(Hat 2)
Lam Hing Chau, Leon 100,000 — — — 100,000 0.01%
MER
Lam King Man 697,000 — 30,000,000 — 30,697,000 2.14%
MEX (Note 3) (Note 4)
(Hf£3) (Hft4)
Lam Wing Tak 14,241,000 1,087,000 — 100,000,000 115,328,000 8.05%
ez (Note 5)
(Wt 5)
Lau Yiu Tong 51,866,000 — — — 51,866,000 3.62%
Bl
Tsang Kang Po 1,988,000 2,501,000 100,000,000 — 104,489,000 729%
DR (Note 6)
(Hit6)
Wan Wai Loi 14,000,000 820,000 — 101,304,000 116,124,000 8.10%
FER (Note 7)
(Rat 7)
20

2010 /2011 Annual Report &3



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

Long positions in Shares (Cont'd)
Notes:

B These Shares are directly held by Silver Bay International Holdings Limited, whose issued share capital is
wholly-owned by KF Suisse SA, the trustee of the Cypress Pacific Trust, a discretionary trust. For the
purposes of the SFO, Mr. Choi Kin Chung is the founder of the Cypress Pacific Trust.

2. These Shares are directly held by Far East Asia Limited, whose issued share capital is wholly-owned by Mr.
Ip Ping Im.

3. These Shares are held jointly by Dr. Lam King Man and the spouse of Dr. Lam King Man.

4. These Shares are directly held by Effective Approach Technology Limited, whose issued share capital is 50%
owned by Dr. Lam King Man and 50% owned by the spouse of Dr. Lam King Man.

5. These Shares are directly held by Fifth Element Enterprises Limited, whose issued share capital is wholly-
owned by BLWT Company Limited. The issued share capital of BLWT Company Limited is wholly-owned
by HSBC International Trustee Limited, the trustee of the family trust of Mr. Lam Wing Tak. For the purpose
of the SFO, Mr. Lam Wing Tak is the founder of the family trust.

6. These Shares are directly held by Top Strong Holdings Limited, whose issued share capital is 50% owned by
Mr. Tsang Kang Po and 50% owned by the spouse of Mr.Tsang Kang Po.

7. These Shares are directly held by Hollywood Pacific Limited, whose issued share capital is 50% owned by
Mr.Wan Wai Loi and 50% owned by WWL Assets Limited. The issued share capital of WWL Assets Limited
is wholly-owned by HSBC International Trustee Limited, the trustee of the family trust of Mr.Wan Wai Loi.
For the purpose of the SFO, Mr. Wan Wai Loi is the founder of the family trust.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company, had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

At no time during the 201 | Financial Year were the rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of Shares in the Company granted to any directors or their respective spouse or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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ESRWE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS ~ FERRRHMATRAQXTRGAEER
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES DZBBERAR

As at 31 March 2011, the following persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the R201MEF3A3A - REARDARES REAEHED
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company FIBEBEFEZLELMALE  UTAL(EE
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of SRR ATBERE RN RAD RRG FRRB R 5

the SFO:

Long positions in Shares

BREZBZEIAR
ERARRBZHR

Number of issued Shares held and nature of interest

RHERTAXARGHBE REENLE
Corporate Approximate
Interests percentage of
Personal Family (interests of issued share
Interests Interests a controlled Trusts and capital of
(beneficial (interests corporation) similar the Company
owner) of spouse) EEER interests Total i N
Name of shareholder A S REER (R EEH FEk Interests BRITRA
BRE® (BEBAA) (BBz#ED) EREzER BOlER BHAE ZB0EIH
Chiu Bo Lan 820,000 14,000,000 — 101,304,000 116,124,000 8.10%
HEH (Note 1) (Note 2)
(Hizt 1) (Hist2)
WWL Assets Limited — — — 101,304,000 101,304,000 7.07%
(Note 2)
(Wt 2)
Hollywood Pacific Limited — — — 101,304,000 101,304,000 7.07%
(Note 2)
(Rt 2)
Lam Wai Yee 2,000,000 401,055,000 — — 403,055,000 28.13%
HWEE (Note 3)
(Bt 3)
Far East Asia Limited 401,055,000 — — — 401,055,000 2799%
(Note 4)
(Hat 4)
Wong Bik Ha 1,087,000 14,241,000 — 100,000,000 115,328,000 8.05%
BEE (Note 5) (Note 6)
(Rt 5) (Hat6)
BLWT Company Limited — — — 100,000,000 100,000,000 6.98%
(Note 6)
(Hit6)
Fifth Element Enterprises — — — 100,000,000 100,000,000 6.98%
Limited (Note 6)
(Hit6)
HSBC International — — — 201,304,000 201,304,000 14.04%
Trustee Limited (Note 2 & 6)
(Kt 2716)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Contd)

Long positions in Shares (Cont'd)

Directors’ Report
EER/|E

TERRKEMATRAR T KRG AEER
DZBBERAR (B)
ARARARBZERE (4)

Number of issued Shares held and nature of interest

REBTEAQAARODEERERLE
Corporate Approximate
Interests percentage of
Personal Family (interests of issued share
Interests Interests a controlled Trusts and capital of
(beneficial (interests corporation) similar the Company
owner) of spouse) HEE RS interests Total REAT
Name of shareholder A% S REER (RERZH FEk Interests BRITRA
REEH (BEEHEEA) (BEzER  HERIER BOER BHAE 2H0EIH
Law Oi Mui — — — 171,102,000 171,102,000 11.94%
REIS (Note 7 & 8)
(Haz7#08)
KF Suisse SA — — — 171,102,000 171,102,000 [1.94%
(Note 8)
(fizt8)
Silver Bay International — — — 171,102,000 171,102,000 I'1.94%
Holdings Limited (Note 8)
(st 8)
Wong Mei Ling 2,501,000 1,988,000 100,000,000 — 104,489,000 729%
BER (Note 9) (Note 10)
(W7t 9) (Hat 10)
Top Strong Holdings 100,000,000 — — — 100,000,000 6.98%
Limited (Note 10)
(Kf7E 10)
Notes: izt

l. Ms. Chiu Bo Lan is the spouse of Mr.Wan Wai Loi, a Director.

2. Hollywood Pacific Limited is 50% owned by Mr. Wan Wai Loi and 50% owned by WWL Assets Limited.
WWL Assets Limited is wholly-owned by HSBC International Trustee Limited, the trustee of the family
trust of Mr.Wan Wai Loi. For the purpose of the SFO, Mr. Wan Wai Loi is the founder of the family trust.

3. Ms. Lam Wai Yee is the spouse of Mr. Ip Ping Im, a Director.

4. Far East Asia Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Ip Ping Im, a Director.

5. Ms. Wong Bik Ha is the spouse of Mr. Lam Wing Tak, a Director.

6. Fifth Element Enterprises Limited is wholly-owned by BLWT Company Limited. BLWT Company Limited is
wholly-owned by HSBC International Trustee Limited, the trustee of the family trust of Mr. Lam Wing Tak.
For the purpose of the SFO, Mr. Lam Wing Tak is the founder of the family trust.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Contd)
Notes: (Contd)

7.

8.

Ms. Law Oi Mui is the spouse of Mr. Choi Kin Chung, a Director.
Silver Bay International Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by KF Suisse SA, the trustee of the Cypress

Pacific Trust, a discretionary trust. For the purposes of the SFO, Mr. Choi Kin Chung, a Director, is the
founder of the Cypress Pacific Trust.

Ms. Wong Mei Ling is the spouse of Mr. Tsang Kang Po, a Director.

Top Strong Holdings Limited is 50% owned by Mr.Tsang Kang Po and 50% owned by Ms.Wong Mei Ling,
the spouse of Mr.Tsang Kang Po.

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of any other member in the Group

FTERRKEMATRA R AR MEER
DeBBRAR (B)

Wit :
7.

8.

(%)
BREBUIREFHEERREZER -

Silver Bay International Holdings Limitedgs KF
Suisse SAZEMEE + KF Suisse SARBIREF
Cypress Pacific TrustZ fZ5EA B % RAEHEMIT
S BEEEBEF R L ACypress Pacific Trustz &l
Ao

AXRALIREFEHRNAECER -

SHEREEREEBERR LT ARIFEBTop Strong
Holdings LimitedZ 50%#z ©

REAGEAMEMRE AR ZRORABRE 2H R

Approximate

percentage
Name of Number of of issued
Name of member substantial issued share capital
of the Group shareholder Note Nature of interest shares RAQNEERZ
AEERENTEH TERRER i &t EHEME RHEE BHEI
Textured Jersey Lanka Limited Brandix Lanka Limited I,2&3 Beneficial owner 230,000,976 40%
EREBEA
PCGT Limited Crystal Peak International Limited 4 & 5 Beneficial owner 975,000 25%
RIEBRERAA EHHEBA
Notes: lEE
I Textured Jersey Lanka Limited is owned as to 60% by Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd., a wholly-owned 1. Textured Jersey Lanka Limitedig A2 7] 2 2 & T &
subsidiary of the Company, and 40% by Brandix Lanka Limited. ‘A A]Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd. #%560%
##% & Brandix Lanka Limited A 40% %
2. On 25 March 201 |, Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited had effected a sub-division of the shares on a 2. 72011438258 + Textured Jersey Lanka (Private)
3.6:1 basis, resulting in the total number of shares in issue to 575,002,440 shares from 159,722,900 shares. Limited#Z 3.6tk 1489 » B R EH TR M L 8
159,722,900% 3% £ 575,002,440/ -
3. On 28 March 2011, the board of directors of Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited resolved to change 3. 720114382808 * Textured Jersey Lanka (Private)
the company name to Textured Jersey Lanka Limited. LimitedE £ B A # BB E X 2 7 & 1 5 Textured
Jersey Lanka Limited ©
4, PCGT Limited is owned as to 75% by Pacific GT Limited and 25% by Crystal Peak International Limited, a 4. PCGT Limited i Pacific GT Limited# & 75%# & & &
wholly-owned subsidiary of Crystal. Rz 2EMBRARBERRERDAEE25%ES -
5. Pacific GT Limited is owned as to 95% by Product Champion Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the 5. Pacific GT Limitedf A2 7] 2 2 & [i{ & 2 & Product

Company, and 2.5% by GSI Trading Hong Kong Limited and 2.5% by Toray Industries (H.K.) Limited.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the Company,
as at 31 March 2011, no other person had an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company that was required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions set out in note 34 to the financial statements also constitute
continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

During the 2011 Financial Year, the Group had the following connected transaction and
continuing connected transactions not exempted under the Listing Rules [4A.31 and 14A.33
respectively:

A.  Connected Transaction

(1) Proposed Spin-off, the Pre-IPO Private Placement, the PT Sri Lanka IPO and the
Proposed Listing
On 30 March 2011, Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings Limtied (“PTJH") and Brandix
entered into the PT Sri Lanka Shareholders’ Agreement whereby PTJH and
Brandix agreed to effect the Pre-IPO Private Placement and the PT Sri Lanka IPO
and Proposed Listing. Details of the Proposed Spin-off, the Pre-IPO Placement,
the PT Sri Lanka IPO and Proposed Listing were set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 18 March 201 | and 30 March 2011,

According to the Listing Rules, Brandix, by virtue of its shareholding in PT Sri
Lanka, a subsidiary of the Company, is a substantial shareholder (as defined in the
Listing Rules) and hence a connected person of the Company. Brandix Group and
its associates are therefore also regarded as connected persons of the Company.

B.  Continuing Connected Transactions
(1) Sale of Products to Brandix Group and its associates

Sale of knitted fabric to Brandix together with its subsidiaries (“Brandix Group”)
and its associate pursuant to a sale of products master agreement (the “Brandix
Sale of Products Master Agreement”) dated 27 August 2007 between the
Company and Brandix Group. The term of the Brandix Sale of Products Master
Agreement has been automatically renewed for a further term of three years
ending 31 March 2013. Details of the Brandix Sale of Products Master Agreement,
annual caps and revised annual caps were set out in the circular of the Company
dated 14 September 2007, the circular of the Company dated || March 2010
(the "2010 Circular”) and the announcement of the Company dated |0 March
2011 (the 2011 Announcement™) where appropriate.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

B.

Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

(1)

(2)

(3)

Sale of Products to Bandix Group and its associates (Cont'd)

Due to the sharp increase in the costs of yarn, the transaction amount of the
aggregate sale of knitted fabrics from the Group to the Brandix Group (other
than PT Sri Lanka) under the Brandix Sale of Products Master Agreement for the
2011 Financial Year was expected to exceed the annual cap disclosed in the 2010
Circular, therefore, the Company revised the annual caps for the continuing
connected transactions for each of the three years ending 31 March 2013. Details
of the revised annual caps for the continuing connected transactions were set out
in the 201 Announcement and the circular of the Company dated | | April 201 1.
Transactions under the Brandix Sale of Products Master Agreement for the 201 |
Financial Year did not exceed the revised annual cap of 2011 Announcement of
HK$450 million (2010: HK$ 1,045 million).

As mentioned above, Brandix is a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Fabric Printing Services from Brandix Group

Fabric printing services from Brandix Group to the Group pursuant to a printing
service master agreement (the “Brandix Printing Services Master Agreement”)
dated 27 August 2007 between the Company and Brandix Group. The term of
the Brandix Printing Services Master Agreement has been automatically renewed
for a further term of three years ending 31 March 2013. Details of the Brandix
Printing Services Master Agreement and annual caps were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 30 August 2007 and the announcement of
the Company dated 26 February 2010. Transactions under the Brandix Printing
Services Master Agreement for the 201 | Financial Year did not exceed the annual
cap of HK$33 million (2010: HK$29.6 million).

As mentioned above, Brandix is a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Sale and Purchase of Knitted Fabric to Crystal Group

Sale and purchase of knitted fabrics to Crystal together with its subsidiaries
(“Crystal Group”) and associates pursuant to a master agreement (the "Crystal
Group Sale and Purchase of Knitted Fabric Master Agreement”) dated |9 August
2010 between the Company and Crystal. Details of the Crystal Group Sale and
Purchase of Knitted Fabric Master Agreement and annual caps were set out in the
circular of the Company dated 8 September 2010. Transactions under the Crystal
Group Sale and Purchase of Knitted Fabric Master Agreement for the 201 |
Financial Year did not exceed the annual cap of HK$494million (2010: Not
Applicable).

According to the Listing Rules, Crystal, by virtue of its shareholding in PCGT
Limited, an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, is a substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) and hence a connected person of the
Company. Crystal Group is therefore also regarded as connected person of the
Company.

26

2010 /2011 Annual Report &3

BEXZ (&)
BERERS (B)

B.

(1)

(2)

(3)

BBrandixE B R EBBAHEEER
(&)

ARPBEKAKE AR A&
R BrandixE i 5 & 4 B 3 52011
FRREEE FBrandixeE (PTHI B &
RBRIN 2SR BREER F S BHEBE
HER2010FBRZFE LR - At -
ARTETTHE20135E3A318 =1
FERFZREMBRSZEFELR -
BRIBEBERGZEE LR FREH
R2O0MERAER011FE4F1MBZ AR
TIBEA - N201MEMBEE - BiE
BrandixEmIHELB HE X FTZR
0MEREZIEFTFE LRISOEES
T (2010%F : 1,045 EETT) °

W EitiE - BE EWARA Brandix&
ARElzBBEAL -

Brandix% B 12 % 2 7 # 1 | iR 7

Brandix £ B 7] 4 & B 12 & 2 7 BHED fpl
R 7 /2 18 #8 K 1\ 8] EBrandixi 20074
SA2TARI L ZHVRIR 75 & B h &
([BrandixENfRI AR 75 42 B #heg ) ) 1B ©
BrandixEI AR B L E Wiz FHES
& = F = 2013F 38 318 Ik o
Brandix I RIRFELEHZRFE LR
ZHBER2007F8A30R 2 AR B A
EH201062A26H 2 RRAIAE - B
201MEFHEE - RIEBrandixH iR
BREMBEZRITZNEE LRIZE
BB (20105F - 296BEBTT) °

mEdE - RBELTHA - BrandixA
ARAIZBEBEAL

HEBEEEEHFEH ST
ReRBEREMBLAR ([RRER]) R
HEBE A FHEGREBHBHRBEAR
AIHE & MR2010F8 A198 I 2 28
W ([REHEHEREE HRELE
WaEl) Bl - SBIESHETE RHE HEK
BRABAEFE LR HBENAR
AR2010F9H8H 2B ° 20114
FHEE  REREHETEREESE
REGERE IR BTERFELR
494F AT (20105 « TEfA) o

WEETRA ERGRBEEADARE
EIF2EMBARPCGT Limited it -
EABFERE(REMBAZER) A
MARAR ZEEAL - Fit - &5
ENREGEAEARARZEEAL -



CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

B.  Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

(4)

(%)

Sale of Products to PT Sri Lanka

Sale of knitted fabrics and greige fabrics to PT Sri Lanka pursuant to a master
agreement (the "PT Sri Lanka Sale of Products Master Agreement”) dated 30
April 2007 between the Company and PT Sri Lanka. The term of the PT Sri Lanka
Sale of Products Master Agreement has been automatically renewed for a further
term of three years ending 31 March 2013. Details of PT Sri Lanka Sale of
Products Master Agreement and annual caps were set out in the Prospectus and
the announcement of the Company dated 26 February 2010. Transactions under
the PT Sri Lanka Sale of Products Master Agreement for the 201 | Financial Year
did not exceed the annual cap of HK$37million (2010: HK$79million).

According to the Listing Rules, PT Sri Lanka is regarded as a connected person as
PT Sri Lanka is an associate of connected person as mentioned above.

Sale of Products to HC Companies

Sale of knitted fabrics to companies in which Mr. Henry Choi has substantial
interest (the "HC Companies”) pursuant to a master agreement (the "HC
Companies Sale of Products Master Agreement”) dated 30 April 2007 between
the Company and the HC Companies. The term of the HC Companies Sale of
Products Master Agreement has been automatically renewed for a further term of
three years ending 31 March 2013. Details of HC Companies Sale of Products
Master Agreement and annual caps were set out in the Prospectus and the
announcement of the Company dated 26 February 2010. Transactions under the
HC Companies Sale of Products Master Agreement for the 2011 Financial Year
did not exceed the annual cap of HK$émillion (2010: HK$25.9million).

Mr. Henry Choi, who is the son of Mr. Choi Kin Chung (a Director), is regarded as
a connected person of the Company by virtue of Listing Rule 14A.11(4)(b).

The Directors, including the INEDs, have reviewed the above-mentioned continuing
connected transactions made during the 2011 Financial Year and confirmed that these
transactions were entered into:

Q)
@)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Company

than terms available to or from independent third parties; and

in accordance with each of the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

B.  Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)
The auditor of the Company was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 "Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor's Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued a letter
containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group above in accordance with the Listing Rules 14A.38.
A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the shareholders of
the Company by reason of their holdings of the Shares.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) was established by the Board with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code contained in Appendix 4 to the Listing
Rules. The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel, Mr. Ng
Ching Wah and Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael. Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report from pages 29 to 35 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, as the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, the
percentage of the Company's shares which are in the hands of the public exceeds 25% of the
Company's total number of issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the Company's events after the 201 | Financial Year are set out in note 36 to the
financial statements.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the 2011 Financial Year have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of
the Company will be proposed for approval by shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wan Wai Loi
CHAIRMAN
Hong Kong, 24 June 201 |
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The Board recognises the importance of maintaining high standard of corporate governance
practices so as to ensure that the business activities and decision making processes are
properly regulated.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions and certain recommended best
practices ("Recommended Best Practices”) set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules where suitable to the Company so as to enhance the corporate
governance standard of the Company throughout the 201 | Financial Year.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix |0 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiries of all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they had complied with the Model
Code for the 2011 Financial Year

THE BOARD

The overall management of the business of the Group is vested to the Board. The Board is
responsible for the formulation of strategic, management and financial objectives of the Group
and ensuring that the interest of shareholders including those minority shareholders are
protected. Daily operations and administration of the Group are delegated to the executive
Directors and the management.

The Board Composition
The Board currently has || members consisting of 5 executive Directors and 6 non-executive
Directors of which 3 are INEDs and its composition is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. WAN Wai Loi (Chairman)

Mr. TSANG Kang Po (Vice Chairman)

Mr. LAM Wing Tak (Chief Executive Officer)
Dr. LAM King Man

Mr. LAM Hing Chau, Leon

Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHOI Kin Chung
Mr. IP Ping Im

Mr. LAU Yiu Tong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. NG Ching Wah

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel

Profiles of the Directors are set out on pages || to |3 of this annual report and is updated
on the website of the Company.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with Directors having sales and marketing
experience and technical knowledge in fabric business, administration and management
experience in the PRC factories, financial and accounting skill is appropriate for effective
decision making, taking into account the nature and scope of the business operations and
development of the Group. The Board considers that each of the Non-executive Directors
and INEDs brings his own relevant expertise to the Board.
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THE BOARD (Contd)

The Board Meeting

The Board meets at least 4 times per year and additional meetings are convened when
deemed necessary by Board. During the 201 | Financial Year, the Board held 6 meetings to
approve interim and final results announcements, interim report and annual report, to
consider dividend policy and to discuss significant issues and the general operation of the
Company. The attendance record of the Directors is set out in the table on page 31 of this
annual report.

The schedule of regular meetings for the whole year has been informed to each Director.
Notices of Board meeting will be served to all the Directors at least 14 days before the
meeting. Notices and agenda of the Board meeting are prepared by the Company Secretary as
delegated by the Chairman. All the Directors are given the opportunity to include any matters
which they believe to be appropriate in the agenda of the Board meetings.

Agenda and relevant information of Board meeting with adequate background information
and supporting analysis are made available to the Directors at least 3 days before the
intended date of the Board meeting. All the Directors are given separate and independent
access to the Company’s senior management for further information and enquiries. The
Company Secretary and senior management attends all the meetings of the Board and Board
committees to advise on corporate governance, statutory compliance and financial matters.

Any material matters that would have conflict of interest between the directors/substantial
shareholders and the Company will be dealt with in the Board meeting. Pursuant to the
Articles, a Director is not entitled to vote on (nor is counted in the quorum) any resolution of
the Board in respect of any contract or arrangement or any other proposal whatsoever in
which he or any of his associates (including any person who would be deemed to be an
“associate” of the Directors under the Listing Rules) has any material interest, except in
certain special circumstances. The chairman of the Board meeting is required to ensure that
each Director is aware of such requirement at the commencement of each Board meeting and
declaration of interest is properly made in the Board meeting where conflicts of interest arise.

Directors have access to the advices and services of the Company Secretary and key officers
of the Company in relation to the board procedures. Draft minutes of Board/Board
committee meetings recorded in sufficient details the matters considered by the participants
of such meetings and decisions reached are forwarded to the participants for comments
within a reasonable time after the meetings and final versions of minutes of Board meetings
and meetings of Board committee are kept by the Company Secretary, which are open for
inspection by any Directors at any reasonable time on reasonable notice.

Board members are provided with complete, adequate and timely information to allow the
Directors to fulfill their duties properly. Directors may seek independent professional advice at
the Company's expense, if necessary, with the approval of the Board.

As permitted under the Articles, the Company has arranged Directors and Officers Liability
Insurance in respect of any legal actions which may be taken against Directors and
management in execution and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT MEETINGS

The attendance record of Director at the meetings of the Board, the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee during the 201 | Financial Year are set
out in the following table:

Board
Bzl
Executive Directors BITEE
Mr. WAN Wai Loi FEREE 616
Mr.TSANG Kang Po LEREE 66
Mr. LAM Wing Tak MERIELE 416
Dr. LAM King Man MRXELT 5/6
Mr. LAM Hing Chau, Leon RELRE A& 66
Non-executive Directors FBITEE
Mr. CHOI Kin Chung BEmEE 5/6
Mr. IP Ping Im ERMEE 26
Mr. LAU Yiu Tong FEELE 5/6
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael BRI 5/6
Mr. NG Ching Wah mBELE 66
Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel i e 6/6

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer are segregated and not exercised by the same individual. The Chairman is
responsible for the leadership and effective running of the Board and ensuring that all material
issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner. The Chief Executive
Officer is responsible for the management of the day-to-day operations of the Group's
business and the implementation of the approved strategies of the Group. The Board is
headed by the Chairman Mr. Wan Wai Loi, with the assistance of the Vice Chairman, Mr. Tsang
Kang Po and the Chief Executive Officer is Mr. Lam Wing Tak.

With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman ensures all the Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at the Board meetings and be provided with adequate
information in a timely manner.

INEDS

The Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least 3 INEDs with at least one INED possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise throughout the 201 | Financial Year.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from each of the INEDs of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them to be
independent of the management and free of any relationship that could materially interfere
with the exercise of their independent judgment.

MANAGEMENT FUNCTION

The Articles set out matters which are specifically reserved to the Board for its decision.
Executive Directors normally meet on an informal basis and participate in senior management
meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast of the latest operations and performance of the
Group and to monitor and ensure the management carry out the directions and strategies set
by the Board correctly and appropriately.
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RESPONSIBLITIES OF DIRECTORS

The Company and the Board require each Director to keep abreast of his responsibilities as a
Director of the Company and of the business and operating activities and development of the
Company. Every Director is required to devote sufficient time and involvement in the affairs of
the Board and the material matters of the Company and to serve the Board with such degree
of care and due diligence given his own expertise, qualification and professionalism.

Every newly appointed Director has been provided with comprehensive and tailored induction
of business operation of the Group, including a site visit of our factory in China on the first
occasion of his appointment. A comprehensive Compliance Manual has been provided to each
Director and has been updated. All Directors have been updated and briefed the relevant
changes in legal and regulatory matters to ensure that they have a proper understanding of
the operations and the business of the Company and that they are fully aware of their
responsibilities under the applicable laws and regulations.

Each executive Director is responsible for the management of the different functions of the
business of the Group. The non-executive Directors attended the Board meetings and advised
their opinion on the business strategy of the Company and reviewed the financial and
operation performance of the Group.

The INEDs serve the relevant function of bringing independent judgment on the issues of
strategic direction, development, performance and risk management of the Group. The INEDs
are all or a majority of members of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is empowered under the Articles to appoint any person as a Director to fill a
casual vacancy on or as an additional member of the Board. Suitable candidates who are
experienced and competent and able to fulfill the fiduciary duties and duties of skill, care and
diligence would be recommended to the Board.

Each of the executive Directors was appointed for an initial term of two years and each
service agreement will continue thereafter until terminated by either party by giving to the
other party at least six months’ prior notice in writing.

Each of the non-executive Directors (including the INEDs) was appointed for a specific term
of two years. The term of the appointment has been extended for a further two years and
ended 30 April 201 |. The term has further been extended for a period of two years from |
May 2011 to 30 April 2013. All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible
for re-election pursuant to the Articles.

Pursuant to the Articles, any Director appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or
as addition to the Board shall retire and be eligible for re-appointment at the next following
general meeting after appointment. At every AGM, one-third of the Directors, including the
Chairman, shall be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders. The
Directors appointed by the Board who are subject to retirement and re-election as
mentioned above shall be taken into account in calculating the total number of Directors for
the time being but shall not be taken into account in calculating the number of Directors who
are to retire by rotation. All Directors eligible for re-election shall have their biographical
details made available to the shareholders to enable them to make an informed decision on
their re-election. Any appointment, resignation, removal or re-designation of Director shall be
timely disclosed to the shareholders by announcement and shall include in such
announcement, the reasons given by the Director for his resignation.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 3 main Board Committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, each chaired by different INED, to
assist the Board for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's affairs. The terms of
reference setting out the principles, procedures and arrangements of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee are available on the website of
the Company. Board Committees report to the Board of their decisions and
recommendations at the Board meetings.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and,
upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company's expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code. The members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Sze Kwok Wing,
Nigel; Mr. Ng Ching Wah and Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael (who are INEDs). Mr. Sze Kwok
Wing, Nigel, a Fellow of CPA Australia, is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing, overseeing and supervision of the
effectiveness of the Group's financial reporting process, internal control systems and risk
management. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee have been reviewed by the
Board with reference to the CG Code.

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during 201 | Financial Year. The major work performed
by the Audit Committee in respect of 201 | Financial Year included approving the terms of
engagement (including the remuneration) of the external auditor; reviewing the unaudited
interim financial information and interim results announcement for the six months ended 30
September 2010; reviewing the audited annual financial information and final results
announcement for 201 | Financial Year; reviewing the work of the Group's internal audit
department and assessing the effectiveness of the Group’s systems of risk management and
internal control. The attendance of the Directors for the Audit Committee meetings is set out
in the table on page 31| of this annual report.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company's external auditor for the ensuing year and the
related resolution shall be put forth in the coming AGM.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the scope and results of the audit and its cost
effectiveness and the independence and objectivity of the Company’s auditor. For 2011
Financial Year, the fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the Company's
auditor were as follows:
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Contd)

Audit Committee (Con'd)

The Audit Committee has undertaken a review of all the non-audit services provided by the
Company's auditor and concluded that in their opinion such services did not affect the
independence of the auditor.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management in conjunction with the auditor, the
audited annual financial statements of the Group for the 2011 Financial Year and the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group. The Annual Report for the 2011
Financial Year has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Recommended Best Practice. The members of the
Nomination Committee are Mr. Ng Ching Wah; Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael; Mr. Sze Kwok
Wing, Nigel (who are INEDs); Mr. Tsang Kang Po and Mr. Lam Wing Tak (who are executive
Directors). Mr. Ng Ching Wah is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment of Directors and the management of the Board succession.

The Nomination Committee met once during the 2011 Financial Year. The major work
performed by the Nomination Committee in respect of the 2011 Financial Year included
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive directors and make
recommendation on the re-election of Mr. Wan Wai Loi, Dr. Lam King Man, Mr. Lau Yiu Tong
and Mr. Ng Ching Wah as the Directors of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The attendance of the Directors for the Nomination Committee meeting is set out in
the table on page 31 of this annual report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The members of the Remuneration Committee
are Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael; Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel and Mr. Ng Ching Wah (who are
INEDs) and Mr. Lam Wing Tak and Mr.Tsang Kang Po (who are executive Directors). Mr. Chan
Yue Kwong, Michael is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to review and determine the terms
of remuneration packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to Directors and senior
management of the Group with reference to the nature of their work, complexity of the
responsibilities and performance. No director is allowed to take part in any discussion about
his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the 2011 Financial Year. The major work
performed by the Remuneration Committee for the 201 | Financial Year included reviewing
the remuneration of the Directors with reference to the remuneration level of directors of
comparable listed companies. The attendance of the Directors for the Remuneration
Committee meeting is set out in the table on page 31 of this annual report.

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set out in note 26 to
the accounts on page 107. The Directors’ fee shall be subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments shall from time to time be determined by the Board
with reference to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities and subject to a review by the
Remuneration Committee.
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ACCOUNTANCY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the Company’s financial statements for
2011 Financial Year which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and
in accordance with the statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Company's interim report and annual report are prepared and published in accordance with
statutory requirements and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards in a timely manner
required under the Listing Rules. Directors are provided with adequate information to enable
them to make an informed assessment of financial and other information on matters for their
approval.

The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting responsibility to the
shareholders on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 36 to 37 of this annual report.

Internal controls

The Group has in place the sound and effective internal controls to safeguard the
shareholders’ investment and the assets of the Group. The Company has from time to time
reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control systems in order to ensure that they meet
with the dynamic and ever changing business environment.

During the 2011 Financial Year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control systems, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions, the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and the training programmes and
budget through the Internal Audit Department and the Audit Committee.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Effective Communication

The Board recognizes the importance of continuing communications with shareholders and
strives to ensure the timeliness, completeness and accuracy of information disclosure to
shareholders and to the protection in the interests of shareholders. As a channel to further
promote effective communication, the Group maintains a website, allowing shareholders to
access updates on the Company's particulars where the Company's announcements, financial
information and other information are posted.

The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with shareholders through general meeting of the
Company to communicate with shareholders. The Chairman of the Board and the
representative of each committee have attended the general meeting to answer any questions
from shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each
substantially separate issue. A shareholder is permitted to appoint any number of proxies to
attend and vote in his stead. The notice of AGM was sent to all shareholders at least 20 clear
business days before the meeting and the notice of all other general meetings to be sent at
least 10 clear business days.

Voting by Poll

The Articles has set out the rights of shareholders and procedures demanding and conducting
a poll on resolutions at general meeting, procedures for and shareholders’ right to demand a
poll have been specified in corporate communications to shareholders and explained details of
such rights at the commencement of the general meeting of shareholders by the Chairman. As
required by the Listing Rules, all the general meetings will be voted by way of poll. The results
of the poll, if any, are published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

BORMKEBESHMELH

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PACIFIC TEXTILES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited (the
“"Company"”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 38 to |17, which
comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31 March 2011, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B AR S

OPINION ER
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of BMRR  ZERSUBRRERBEERBRE

affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 201 | and of the Group's profit and HRAEEMATHRE BERRAR SEER2011
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting FIANEMEHEMA &k EXKEBEZBILEF
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements ENFERASTE  WERBREB(RAKIDH

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. BRERTEZREH -
PricewaterhouseCoopers BERUKBEMSEHM
Certified Public Accountants S =]
Hong Kong, 24 June 201 | B 1 2011F6H24H
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Bt 7% & #

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT For the year ended 3| March 201 |

BEWFER BZ2011E3ANALEE

2011 2010
20115 2010
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
i3 TER TAT
Revenue A 5 7,180,664 5,883,413
Cost of sales i E R 25 (5,890,705) (4,661,649)
Gross profit EF 1,289,959 1,221,764
Other income and other gains/(losses) - net HiAREm (BE) —F 24 90,918 67219
Distribution and selling expenses DHREERX 25 (91,421) (135,694)
General and administrative expenses —RRITBAX 25 (193,526) (184,164)
Operating profit RE BT 1,095,930 969,125
Finance income MBWA 27 4710 4946
Finance costs BRERAR 27 (3,223) (3,833)
Share of profits of associates Db EE N ) Fl 9(a) 4,249 6,706
Share of losses of jointly controlled entities bR H B EEE 10 (23,978) (8413)
Profit before income tax PR B AT A 1,077,688 968,531
Income tax expense PSR 28 (183,438) (149,680)
Profit for the year EERF 894,250 818,851
Profit attributable to: T AL
Equity holders of the Company RABRERFEA 876,374 803,186
Non-controlling interests R GRS 17,876 | 5,665
894,250 818,851
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the FARDAERFFEA
equity holders of the Company during the year FE1E s 2 BR AR
— basic and diluted (HK$) —EXREE (Br) 29 0.6l 0.56
Dividends BB 30 472,869 745,127

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

2010 /2011 Annual Report &3
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Financial Information

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME For the year ended 31 March 201 |

SEEEWRER 22011538318 ILFE

AR

2011 2010

20115 2010%F

Note HK$°000 HK$'000

i3 TER TET

Profit for the year EEBF 894,250 818,851
Other comprehensive income: Htt2EBA :

Currency translation differences SN E R 112,859 6,488

Available-for-sale financial assets AHHEeRERE I'l 16 —

Total comprehensive income for the year FEEERAAE 1,007,125 825,339
Attributable to: THIALHER :

Equity holders of the Company ARAERFERA 989,090 809,951

Non-controlling interests FE 1 ) M 7 18,035 15,388

Total comprehensive income for the year FEEERAEAE 1,007,125 825,339

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AR

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET As at 31 March 201 |

BEBESBR R2011E38318

As at 31 March As at | April
®W3A3IA m4A/1H
2011 2010 2009
2011 & 2010 2009 4
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
et FHx FHET FHET
(Restated — (Restated —
Note2.1(a)(i)) Note2.1(a)(i))
(HE5l — (A E —
BiaE 2.1()0)  KizF 2.1(a)(i)
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets gFﬁEEE
Leasehold land and land use rights T & £ 4 I 1 3 {F PR 4 6 23,693 23,590 24,237
Property, plant and equipment mE - BEREE 7 1,407,251 ,448,159 1,502,886
Interests in an associate NN R £ 9 33,382 27752 23,201
Interests in jointly controlled entities REREG B 2w 10 99,508 102,199 20,141
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTSTHEE 21 6,580 4,950 —
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESREE [ 1,796 1,780 |,760
Structured deposits and bonds FERUEERRESR 12 = 130,301 —
1,572,210 1,738,731 1,572,225
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 13 1,501,452 1,173,632 761,640
Trade and bills receivables NS 14 1,109,893 788,820 600,116
Deposits, prepayments and Ee  BENRER
other receivables H b fE W 5k I8 15 46,355 66,490 18,289
Derivative financial instruments PTESRIA 16 5,669 496 1,596
Structured deposits and bonds EEEFIRES 2 116,883 194,267 —
Cash and bank balances Be RBTEH 17 947,468 689,383 1,431,664
3,727,720 2,917,553 2,813,305
Total assets BEME 5,299,930 4,656,284 4,385,530
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to NEL:
equity holders of the Company BFEAEGRESR
Share capital %N 18 1,433 1,433 1433
Share premium TN 18 1,371,817 1371817 1,687,063
Reserves iR 19 2,427,306 1,880,980 1,422,470
3,800,556 3,254,230 3,110,966
Non-controlling interests T MEE S 87,024 65,723 50,335
Total equity EREHE 3,887,580 3,319,953 3,161,301

BER 2 RO SR A IS R 2 B0

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET As at 31 March 201 |
BEBESMEBR R2011E38318

Financial Information

AR

As at 31 March As at | April
®W3A31A n4A8 1R
201 | 2010 2009
2011 & 2010 2009 &
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iz FHx FHET FHET
(Restated — (Restated —
Note2.1(a)(i)) Note2.1(a)(i))
(#BEZ— (#BEZI—
BtaE 2.1(a)0)  HYEE 2.1(a)(i)
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Borrowings BE 20 98 848 120,609
Derivative financial instruments MTESBIA 16 — 72 —
Deferred income tax liabilities EXEFEHAas 21 29,114 16,751 4,825
29,212 17,671 125,434
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and bills payables ERERRER 22 774,513 805,291 551,432
Accruals and other payables JESTIE B KA fh B 5RE 23 360,470 354,356 239,264
Amount due to an associate FESHEE & A R FRIB 9 2,736 5,250 —
Borrowings faE 20 174,024 73,509 284915
Derivative financial instruments PTESRIA 6 587 1,240 6l
Current income tax liabilities REmERAR 70,808 79,014 23,123
1,383,138 1,318,660 1,098,795
Total liabilities EE8E 1,412,350 1,336,331 1,224,229
Total equity and liabilities ERREEAE 5,299,930 4,656,284 4,385,530
Net current assets RBEETRE 2,344,582 [,598,893 [, 714510
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBAERS 3,916,792 3,337,624 3,286,735

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 24 June 201 |

and were signed on its behalf:

Wan Wai Loi
FER

Director

BEE

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Financial Information
Bt 7% & #

BALANCE SHEET As at 31 March 201 |
EEBMER M2011438318

2011 2010
2011 F 2010
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
& FTER FHT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RKTB AR 2 = 8 1,786,674 1,287,089
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E R 8 600,000 643,267
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables Be  ENFIEREMEKIE I5 8 149
Cash and bank balances Re LRTHEH 17 4,443 2,195
604,451 645,61 |
Total assets EE#E 2,391,125 1,932,700
EQUITY R
Share capital R 7R 18 1,433 1,433
Share premium R AR 4 (B 18 1,371,817 1,371,817
Reserves i 19 1,009,565 555,279
2,382,815 1,928,529
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables FEETIE B RE MR FRIE 23 3,576 3,109
Amounts due to subsidiaries AL IENGIE S 8 4,734 1,062
Total liabilities aELE 8310 4171
Total equity and liabilities EZREBEAE 2,391,125 1,932,700
Net current assets REBEEFRE 596,141 641,440
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBERS 2,382,815 1,928,529

HHBRCEEZRN2011F6 A 24 Bt R
B UREREEREE :

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 24 June 20! | and
were signed on its behalf:

Wan Wai Loi Tsang Kang Po
FER BER
Director Director

3 S

BERt 2 M DU R A BB RE 280

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

42
2010 /2011 Annual Report &3



Financial Information

> A2
BB EHR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY For the year ended 31 March 201 |
GABRZDR AT0NEIANALER
Attributable to equity holders
of the Company
FRARARBEAAEL 31
controlling
Share Share interests
capital premium Reserves Sub-total s Total
kX RAEE e Pt 24 BE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fitat THL TET TET TET TET THL
(Note 18) (Note 18) (Note 19)
(Hzt18)  (Ba18)  (WaE19)
Balance at | April 2009 R2009F4H | Az&8 1433 1,687,063 1,422,470 3,110966 50335 3,161,301
Comprehensive income: 2EWA
Profit for theyear RN - . Balee  Boslse 15665 81885
Other comprehensive income: Htt2EWA :
Currency translation differences NEREEE — — 6,765 6,765 Q77) 6,488
Total comprehensive income FERALE — — 809,951 809,95 15,388 825,339
Transactions with owners: HERARS
Share-based compensation expense A0 AN i 18(c) = = 6,793 6,793 = 6,793
2008/09 final dividend 2008/09 F R ER & = — (171952) (171,952) — (171952)
2009/10 interim dividend 2009/10 EH #fR & 30 - - (186,282) (186,282) — (186,282)
2009/10 special dividend 2009/10 R HIAR S 30 - (315,246) — (315,246) - (315,246)
Edlmesenriemss bkl =GR Eeh ST ]
Balance at 31 March 2010 R2010F3 A3 Bz&8 1433 1,371,817 1,880,980 3254230 65723 3319953
Balance at | April 2010 R210548 | B2 1,433 1,371,817 1,880,980 3,254,230 65,723 3,319,953
Comprehensive income: 2EBA
Profit for the year FEEF — — 876,374 876,374 17,876 894,250
Other comprehensive income: H2EWA
Currency translation differences INEREZESE = = 112,700 112,700 159 112,859
Fair value gains on available-for-sale AtHECRARE
financial assets NhEKR — — 16 16 — 16
CEVGECASTRGD L0 I - el 2 U <IN T
Transactions with owners: HEFARS
Share-based compensation expense i anEsll e 18(c) = = 1,446 1,446 — 1,446
2009/10 final dividend 2009/10 E R R 5 30 — — (243,599)  (243,599) — (243,599)
2010/1'1 interim dividend 2010/11 FHERE 30 — — (200,611)  (200,611) — (200,611)
Contributions from non-controlling WA Rz JE I
interests of subsidiaries B ER 8 — — — - 3,266 3,266
Total transactions with owners EREEARSAH = — (442,764)  (442,764) 3,266 (439,498)
Balance at 31 March 2011 R201IF3A3I BzESR 1,433 1,371,817 2427306 3,800,556 87,024 3,887,580

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS For the year ended 3| March 201 |

SEBERER #22011F38310ILEE

2011 2010
2011 % 2010
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
fitat TR TET
Cash flow from operating activities REEBRERE
Cash generated from operations REEBKEEZRS 31(a) 758,083 955,225
Interest paid BEAFE (3,223) (3,833)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEREENEH (124,785) (41,043)
PRC income tax paid BB S (56,895) (45,810)
Net cash generated from operating activities REXBREECRSRE 573,180 864,539
Cash flow from investing activities REZBHZHAELRE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEME  BERR (174,666) (240,645)
Redemption/(purchase) of structured deposit and bond ERUERRESCER, (BE) 207,685 (324,568)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment  [EE¥ ¥ « BE XX EEHRIE 31(b) 1,462 17,147
Loan to a jointly controlled entity HRZEHERZEN (4,960) —
Capital injections into jointly controlled entities RERZHEEZTE (6,548) (90,471)
Acquisition of additional interests in jointly controlled entities 4 i £k [F] 45" | & 82 2 %8 51 i 25 10 (13,293) —
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired WE—HHRELAR - ReWEEE 31(c) — 2,384
Interest income received B F A 4,710 4,946
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities REZDEE/(BAH) 2REFHE 14,390 (631,207)
Cash flow from financing activities METHZHERE
Contributions from non-controlling interests of subsidiaries {82 7] 2 JE4% il M 4 25 2 B Bk 3,266 —
Repayment of loan from a non-controlling interest BE B AR 2 FEER &
of a subsidiary BHER (49,638) (9.591)
Loan from a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary — TP 8 2% A FEFE ) MR 2 &K 13,616 —
Proceeds from bank loans BITEREHIAE 62,246 12,399
Repayment of bank loans ERIBITER (719) (297,764)
Repayment of capital element of finance lease obligations ~ {EE B AR ERE 2 EARNLH (79) (810)
Dividends paid BEARE (444,210) (673,480)
Net cash used in financing activities METHHACRESFE (415,518) (969,246)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BeRELEEER
cash equivalents 2,/ (Rd) FH# 172,052 (735,914)
Cash and cash equivalents and R4AR1BERERREEHEHEH
bank overdrafts at | April RITEX 686,476 1,418,659
Currency translation differences HNEE IR E =5 59,625 3,731
Cash and cash equivalents and R3IA3 BRERBELSEEBEHAE
bank overdrafts at 31 March BTEX 17 918,153 686,476

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited (the “Company"”) and its subsidiaries (together the
"Group") are principally engaged in the manufacture and trading of textile products. Its
production bases are primarily located in the People's Republic of China (the "PRC")
and Sri Lanka.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman lIslands. The
address of its registered office is PO. Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church Street,
George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$),
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 24 June 201 I.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basis of preparation and principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"), issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair
value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity and areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Contd)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
New and amended standards adopted by the Group

(@)

0]

The following amendment to a standard is mandatory for the first
time for the Group's financial year beginning | April 2010:

HKAS 17 (Amendment), ‘Leases’ deletes specific guidance regarding
classification of leases of land, so as to eliminate inconsistency with
the general guidance on lease classification. As a result, leases of land
should be classified as either finance or operating leases using the
general principles of HKAS 7, i.e. whether the lease transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset to the lessee. Prior to the amendment, a land interest where
title is not expected to pass to the Group by the end of the lease
term was classified as operating lease under “Leasehold land and land
use rights”, and any premium paid was amortised over the lease term.

HKAS |7 (Amendment) has been applied retrospectively for annual
periods beginning | April 2010 in accordance with the effective date
and transitional provisions of the amendment. The Group has
reassessed the classification of unexpired leasehold land interests and
land use rights as at | April 2010 on the basis of information existing
at the inception of those leases, and recognised the leasehold land
interests in Hong Kong as finance leases retrospectively. As a result of
the reassessment, the Group has reclassified the leasehold land
interests in Hong Kong from operating leases to finance leases.

The leasehold land interests in Hong Kong is held for the Group's
own use and are accounted for as property, plant and equipment at
cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided from the
date the land is available for its intended use over the shorter of the
useful life of the asset and the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Cont'd)
(@) New and amended standards adopted by the Group (Cont'd)

(i)  The following amendment to a standard is mandatory for the first
time for the Group's financial year beginning | April 2010: (Cont'd)

The effect of the adoption of this amendment is as follows:

Financial Information
B 7% & #

REMBERME (B)
2. GREERBEGHBRMR (B)

2.1 REEE(E)

BN BKERRE 228 (£)
(a) AKBETHRAZHTRETER
(&)

(i) TEIRITEREFTIR2010
FLRA1BABZAE B
BEEBRHE AT (B)

B IRIE T 2 & 285 10
T

As at 31 March  As at 31 March As at | April

®W3A3A W3A31H n48 18

2011 2010 2009
2011 §F 20104 2009 F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T FET

Decrease in leasehold land and TS T o -4 (50 A A
land use rights A (3,501) (3,598) (3,694)
Increase in property, plant and equipment  #)3 B R & AL N 3,501 3,598 3,694

The adoption of this amendment also resulted in an increase in
depreciation of property, plant and equipment of HK$97,000 and a
corresponding decrease in amortization of leasehold land and land
use rights for the year ended 31 March 201 1(2010: HK$96,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Contd)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Contd)
New and amended standards adopted by the Group (Cont'd)

(@)

(i1

REMBERME (B)

2.1

The following amendments to standards and interpretations are also
mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after | April 2010
and relevant to the Group. The adoption of these amendments to
standards and interpretations does not have impact to the published
results for the current and prior periods and financial position of the

Group:

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HK- Int 5

HKFRSs
(Amendments)

2010 /2011 Annual Report &3

Consolidated and
Separate Financial
Statements

Business Combinations

Presentation of
Financial Statements -
Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan
that contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause

First Annual
Improvements Project
published in October 2008
and Second Annual
Improvements Project
published in May 2009
by HKICPA (excluding
HKAS 17 (Amendment)
- Leases)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after

| July 2009

| July 2009

Immediate effect from
29 November 2010

| July 2009
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Cont'd)
(@) New and amended standards adopted by the Group (Cont'd)

(iii)

Financial Information

REMBERME (B)

2.1

The following amendments to standards and interpretations to
existing standards are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on
or after | April 2010 but are not relevant to the Group's operations:

HKAS 32
(Amendment)

HKAS 39
(Amendment)

HKFRS | (Revised)
HKFRS |

(Amendment)
HKFRS 2

(Amendment)

HK(FRIC) - Int 17

HK(FRIC) - Int 18

Classification of Rights Issues
Eligible Hedged Items
First-time Adoption of HKFRS
Additional Exemptions
for First-time Adopters
Group Cash-settled
Share-based Payment
Transactions
Distributions of Non-cash

Assets to Owners

Transfers of Assets
from Customers

Effective for

accounting periods

beginning on

or after

| February 2010

| July 2009

| July 2009

| January 2010

| January 2010

| July 2009

| July 2009
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Contd)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Contd)
(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards
that have been issued but are not effective
The following standards, amendments to standards and interpretations to

REMBERME (B)
2. GUEERBERGHBRMR (B)

2.1 REEE(E)

BN BEEARE 228 (£)
(b) BREMARERNHTER B
TEABTRERE

UTRERMEL  EEITR

BITERRE  MKR2010F481
BRI zG 2 e HRAAE
o MY ERATRA

existing standards have been issued but are not effective for the accounting
period beginning on or after | April 2010 and have not been early adopted:

Effective for

accounting periods RT5IRBESR
beginning on R g e
or after SHHMLEN
HKAS 12 Deferred tax: recovery | January 2012 BAEE %R BIERE - 201251818
(Amendment) of underlying assets £125% (BaIAK) REEEKD
HKAS 24 (Revised) ~ Related Party Disclosures | January 2011 BAEES REBEATZHRE 2011%E1A18
%245, (RE7T)
HKFRS | Limited Exemption from ljuy2010  BBHERE BREME L ER 201057718
(Amendment) Comparative HKFRS 7 ERE 1R HBRERNE TR
Disclosures for First-time CCHEN) HREREEZ
Adopters REHE
HKFRS | Severe Hyperinflation and 2011 BEBEHRE BERBRRENRH  2011E7R1H
(Amendment) Removal of Fixed Dates for EE 1R EREERE A
First-time Adopters (BFTA)
HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Ijuy 2011 BHBEFERE BE-cREEER 2011E7A18
(Amendment) Transfers of Financial Assets BRE TR
(BF %)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments | January 2013 BABBHRS ERIA 2013517418
BHIE9%
HK(FRIC) - Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum I Janvary 2011 &% (BB REEEEX 2011E1A1H
(Amendment) Funding Requirement BEREZER) ZENFTIE
-2BE 145
(BF%)
HK(FRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing Financial 200 & (BEIRE%EE JMERIA 201067 A 18
Liabilities with Equity 2BEERE) - BHeRam
Instruments RBE 195
HKFRSs Third Annual Improvements Iuly2010  BBHEREER REEIMAER 201057818
(Amendments) Project Published in May 2010 CCHES) 2010% 5 ARffH
by HKICPA EHERRERR

EXRHRBAEMAERL - &
AETERE  TAHAKEN
FENMBRRELEATE -

The directors anticipate that the adoption of these new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretations will not result in a significant
impact on the results and financial position of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
2.2 Consolidation

(@)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which
the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net
assets.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost
is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the statement of
comprehensive income (Note 2.7).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. The financial statements of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies
adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
2.2 Consolidation (Contd)

(b)

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions
with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from non-controlling
interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence
is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The
Group's investment in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition,
net of any accumulated impairment loss.

The Group's share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is
recognised in the consolidated income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in
other comprehensive income. The cumulative post-acquisition movements
are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)

(©)

Associates (Contd)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. The financial statements
of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are recognised
in the consolidated income statement.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in associates are stated at
cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of associates are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture in which the Group and other
parties undertake an economic activity which is subject to joint control and
none of the participating parties has unilateral control over the economic
activity. Investments in jointly controlled entities are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The
Group's investments in jointly controlled entities includes goodwill identified
on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment loss.

The Group's share of its jointly controlled entities’ post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in the consolidated income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group's share of losses in a jointly controlled entity equals or
exceeds its interest in the jointly controlled entity, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the jointly
controlled entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its jointly
controlled entities are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in
the jointly controlled entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
The financial statements of jointly controlled entities have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies
adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in jointly controlled entities
are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

In the Company's balance sheet, the investments in jointly controlled
entities are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of
jointly controlled entities are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.3

24

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker(*CODM"). The CODM,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the executive directors collectively,
who make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(@)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$"), which is
the Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuations where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated
income statement within “other income and other gains/ (losses) — net".

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign
currency classified as available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the security and
other changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation differences
related to changes in amortised cost are recognised in profit and loss and
other changes in carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such
as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets, such as equities classified as available-for-sale, are
included in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

24

2.5

2.6

Foreign currency translation (Contd)

(©

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group's entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each consolidated income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions);
and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the
net investment in foreign operations, and of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or
sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity are recognised in
the consolidated income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate.

Leasehold land and land use rights

The up-front prepayments made for leasehold land interests -

classified as

operating lease and land use rights are accounted for as operating leases. They are
expensed in the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
periods of the lease or the land use rights. When there is impairment, the
impairment is expensed in the consolidated income statement.

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. Leasehold land interests

classified as finance lease and all other property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as a finance lease commences amortisation from the
time when the land interest becomes available for its intended use. Amortisation
on leasehold land classified as finance lease and depreciation on other assets
other than construction in progress are calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their costs over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land classified as Over the remaining

finance lease lease term
Buildings 2% — 4%
Plant and machinery 10% — 20%

Leasehold improvements, furniture 12.5% — 25%

and equipment
Motor vehicles 20% — 25%

The assets’ useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount (Note 2.8).

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and machinery on which
construction work has not been completed. It is carried at cost which includes
construction expenditures and other direct costs less any impairment losses. On
completion, construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate categories
of property, plant and equipment at cost less accumulated impairment losses. No
depreciation is provided for construction in progress until the asset is completed
and available for use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the

carrying amount and are recognized within “other income and other gain /(losses)
—net" in the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.7

28

2.9

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of
the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the
date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in
‘intangible assets'. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying
amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment
testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in
which the goodwill arose identified according to operating segment.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates, jointly controlled entities
and other non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, including goodwill, are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each balance
sheet date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries or associates or jointly
controlled entities is required upon receiving dividends from these investments if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiaries or
associates or jointly controlled entities in the period the dividend is declared or if
the carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Financial assets

2.9.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
2.9  Financial assets (Contd)
2.9.1 Classification (Cont'd)

(@)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets
held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term.
Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current
assets if expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They
are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than |2
months after the balance sheet date. These are classified as non-
current assets. The Group's loans and receivables comprise ‘trade and
other receivables’ and ‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the balance sheet
(Notes 2.14 and 2.15).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to dispose of it within 2
months of the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont(d) FREMBRRNE (B)
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. REEEHRBESHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
2.9 Financial assets (Cont'd) 29 LRMEE (H)
2.9.2 Recognition and measurement 29.2 BRAETE

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date-the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at
fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss' category are presented in the
consolidated income statement within ‘other income and other gains /
(losses) - net’ in the period in which they arise. Dividend income from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of other income when the Group's
right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are included in the
consolidated income statement as ‘other income and other gains /(losses) —
net'.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the consolidated income statement as part of
other income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated income statement as part of other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.1l Impairment of financial assets

(@)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is objective
evidence of an impairment loss include:

. Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

. A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

. The Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, granting to the borrower a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider;

. It becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;

. The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because
of financial difficulties; or

. Observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of financial assets since
the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot
yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the portfolio,
including:

(i)  adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the
portfolio;

(i) national or local economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on the assets in the portfolio.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.1l Impairment of financial assets (Contd)

(@)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Cont'd)
The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement. If a loan or held-
to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.

If,in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor's credit
rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. For
equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is also evidence that
the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss - is removed from
equity and recognised in the separate consolidated income statement.
Impairment losses recognised in the separate consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the separate
consolidated income statement.

Impairment testing of trade and other receivables is described in Note 2.14.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. The method of
recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged.

Derivative instruments which do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted
for at fair value through profit and loss. Changes in the fair value of these derivate
instruments are recognized immediately in the consolidated income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished goods and
work-in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.
In the consolidated balance sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities.

Share capital

Shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.17

2.18

2.19

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade and other
payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
the consolidated income statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs.
To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the balance sheet date.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the consolidated income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries and associates and jointly controlled entities operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.19

2.20

Current and deferred income tax (Cont'd)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, the deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Employee benefits

(i)  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(i)  Retirement benefits
The Group participates in various defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes. A defined contribution plan is a retirement benefit scheme under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
2.20 Employee benefits (Cont'd)

(i)

(iii)

Retirement benefits (Cont'd)

The schemes are generally funded through payments to insurance
companies or state/trustee-administered funds. The Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered funds on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or
a reduction in the future payments is available.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan,
under which the entity receives services from employees as consideration
for equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted:

J including any market performance conditions (for example, an entity’s
share price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period);
and

. including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of options that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognized over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of
the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At each balance sheet
date, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
income statements, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The
proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium when the
options are exercised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.20

221

222

Employee benefits (Cont'd)

(iii)  Share-based compensation (Cont'd)
The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to the
employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution to the subsidiary. The fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised over the
vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with
a corresponding credit to equity.

The social security contributions payable in connection with the grant of
the share options is considered an integral part of the grant itself, and the
charge will be treated as a cash-settled transaction.

(iv) Bonus plan
The expected cost of bonus payments is recognized as a liability when the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow
will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations
as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with
respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for
the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities.
Revenue is shown, net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities as
described below. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of
each arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

222

2.23

2.24

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

(a) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when a Group's entity has delivered products
to the customer; the customer has accepted the products and collectability
of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

Advance payments received from customers prior to delivery of goods and
provision of services are recorded as receipts in advance.

(b)  Sub-contracting income
Sub-contracting income is recognized when services are rendered.

(c) Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. When a
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at
the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired
loan and receivables are recognised using the original effective interest rate.

(d) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred government grants and are credited to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of
the related assets.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying asset are
capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the
assets for its intended use. Other borrowing costs are charged to the
consolidated income statement in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.25

2.26

227

Leases

(a) Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership
are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

(b) Finance leases
The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment. Leases of
property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalized at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair
value of the leased assets and the present value of the minimum lease
payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so
as to achieve a constant rate on the finance lease balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
current and non-current borrowings. The interest element of the finance
cost is charged to the consolidated income statement over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful
life of the asset and the lease term.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
[t can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or
the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in
the Group's and Company's financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company's shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. Because of the
simplicity of the financial structure and current operations of the Group, there
were no major hedging activities other than the use of external forward currency
contracts to hedge foreign exchange risk. However, these forward currency
contracts do not qualify for hedge accounting and are accounted for at fair value
through profit and loss.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to the US dollar and
Renminbi. The Group manages its foreign exchange risks by
performing regular review and monitoring its foreign exchange
exposure. The Group hedges against the exposure and reduce the
risk involved as appropriate.

The Group mainly operates in HK, the PRC and Macau. Except for
those cash and bank balances denominated in foreign currency,
transactions are mainly conducted in the functional currency of each
group entity. The foreign currency risk arising from recognised assets
and liabilities is considered to be minimal.

The conversion of Renminbi (“RMB") into foreign currencies is
subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

For the year ended 31 March 2011, the cash and bank balance
denominated in US dollar (“US$") of the subsidiary in the PRC
exposes the Group to foreign exchange risk. If US$ had
strengthened/weakened by 4% against the RMB with all other
variables held constant, profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$1,863,140 (2010: HK$2,422,336) higher/lower
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of
US$ denominated cash and bank balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

3.

3.1

Financial risk factors (Contd)
Market risk (Contd)

(@)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for the structured deposits and bonds, cash at bank, short-
term bank deposits and borrowings, details of which are disclosed in
Notes 12, 17 and 20 respectively, the Group has no other significant
interest-bearing assets or liabilities.

Structured deposit and bonds, bank deposits and borrowings at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The
Group manages its interest rate risk by performing regular reviews
and continually monitoring its interest rate exposures. The Group has
not used any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk.

For the year ended 31 March 201 I, if the market interest rates for
structured deposits and bonds, and short-term bank deposits had
been 50 basis points (2010: 50 basis points) higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the Group's net profit would have been
approximately HK$690,000 (2010: HK$1,881,000) higher/lower.

For the year ended 3| March 201 [, if the market interest rates for
floating rate bank borrowings had been 50 basis points (2010: 50
basis points) higher/lower with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s net profit would have been approximately HK$803,000
(2010: HK$123,000) lower/higher.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from structured deposits and bonds, trade and bills
receivables, deposits and other receivables, derivative financial instruments
and cash and bank balances.

At 31 March 2011 and 2010, substantially all the structured deposits and
bonds, cash and bank balances as detailed in Notes 12 and |7 are held in
major financial institutions located in Hong Kong, PRC, Sri Lanka and Macau;
all derivative financial instruments are also entered into with major financial
institutions which management believes are of high credit quality.
Management does not expect any losses arising from non-performance by
these financial institutions.

70

2010 /2011 Annual Report &3

REMBERME (B)
BRERBER (&)
BREBREE (8)

3.

3.1

(a)

(b)

miHEER (B)

(i) BERERDFENRER
BREBEERERSS  #£17
ReREHBETERER
E - HFEABIEHRAME
12 ~ B sE17E KT 7E 2058
AEEVEHMEAFEE
EREE -

BFHM X B ERIER
RERES  ROFKREE
SAEEEHREREFN X
Rfg - REEEBE HEH
R B R E N K A R,
RmERENEAR - KK
B3 A RN R R
SUAERE R R 2 F R

B2 e

B E2011F3831H It F
B EEEEREERR
REBTERZTBMNEL
7t/ FBE50E 25 (20104 :
BOEZE) » M HE b o] & F
BERE  KEEMGF L
M/ k> # 690,000 T
(20104 : 1,881,000/87T) °

BZE211F3A318 L F
B HAZBFRAFEZR
AEEZMEREER /T
P& 50% 2 (20104 : 50E
B MEMTERSES
T AEEGFIERD
#4147803,0007% 7T (2010
£ 123,000 7T) °

RERR
FERRREBLETERESGSS
BUEFRRE  FREEME
WER  TEERIARRER
RITHER -

M2011FEH2010F3A31H © 3
B FE1 28R 1 7R BT A
REMGEREES  HE kBT
BERERRES  HE - HTEH
TRBFAEZCREE BN
EeRTIAYHEREREBS
EELSENEZSRMBIBR -
EEEVAESHE HREMEZ
SCRBBETBOMEENE

Be



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(b)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to customers
with appropriate credit history and the Group performs periodic credit
evaluations of its customers. Credit quality of customers is assessed based
on their financial position, past experience and other factors. Normally the
Group does not require collateral from trade debtors. The existing debtors
have no significant defaults in the past. The Group’s historical experience in
collection of trade and other receivables generally falls within the recorded
allowances and the Directors are of the opinion that adequate provision for
uncollectible receivables has been made.

Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash and
the availability of funding through adequate committed credit facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements are for additions of and upgrades
to property, plant and equipment, repayment of debts and payment for
purchases and operating expenses. The Group finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of funds generated from its operations
and bank borrowings.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure it maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents and
has available funding through adequate amount of committed credit
facilities to meet its working capital requirements.

The table below analyse the Group’s and the Company's financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Contd)

REMBERME (B)
3. MBERER(E)

3.1 MEBEBRERER (H)

(c) Liquidity risk (Contd) (c) HEMERR (&)
(i)  Group i =AEE
Within Between |
| year and 2 years Total
I £ R | FE2EF it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET
At 31 March 201 I: M201ME3A31H:
Borrowings faE 174,024 98 174,122
Trade and bills payables FERT R R R IR 774,513 — 774,513
Net settled derivatives FEEBTHETA 472 — 472
Accruals and other payables FEETIE B K E b e 5RIA 360,470 — 360,470
Amount due to an associate JE (T B 2 A B FR0E 2,736 — 2,736
Total a5t 1,312,215 98 1,312,313
At 31 March 2010: 7201043 A 318 :
Borrowings R 75,351 882 76,233
Trade and bills payables JEHEE?X&%‘%TJ% 805,291 — 805,29
Accruals and other payables [EEtIEE &ﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁ%ﬁ’\lﬁ 354,356 — 354,356
Amount due to an associate Fgﬁﬂﬁﬁfﬁﬂ I 5,250 — 5,250
Total st 1,240,248 882 1,241,130
The table below analyses the Group's derivative financial instruments TRARASEEEAEFERE
which will be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity groupings A HIEH B &9 5 68 EA R 69 A
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the EREREENITESRT
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the ARDM - RERPRENS
contractual undiscounted cash flows. BREAUERFTERERM
g o
Between Between
Less than | and 3 3 months Over
| month months and | year | year Total
SR IR 12388 3ERAZEIHF ;3> o #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET
At 31 March 2011 M2011¥3A31H
Forward currency BHEBEN
contracts:
Inflow mA 62,246 396,819 1,050,403 — 1,509,468
Outflow M (61,871) (394,593) (1,044,454) — (1,500,918)
At 3l March 2010 201063 A 31 H
Forward currency RHBEBEN
contracts:
Inflow mA 104,512 305,408 642,868 38,820 1,091,608
Outflow i (104,465) (304,448) (642,161) (38,693) (1,089,767)
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FEMBHRRME ()
3. MBERER(E)
3.1 M¥EBER (&)
(c) REBHARE)

(i) Company (i) AT

Within | year
| £
HK$'000
FET

At 31 March 201 1: R2011F3H318:
Accruals and other payables JEEHIE B o E b & (5008 3,576
Amounts due to subsidiaries FENLENGE e 4,734
8,310

At 31 March 2010: M 2010%F3 A 318 :
Accruals and other payables JEEHIE B o E b & (4 5008 3,109
Amounts due to a subsidiary J& 5 — R Bt B 2 R KIR 1,062
4,171

32 HemBER

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of
the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowing divided by total capital.
Total borrowings include current and non-current borrowings as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet, and total capital is the amount of ‘equity’ as shown in
the consolidated balance sheet. The gearing ratios were as follows:

AEENESERRRARERSE
BEEE  URBRRRUDE  FR
BEMBESEAZHE  WERKE
ZERERAREBEKA -

RTRFAABRERGERE  FREWH
SHEARREN ZRERE - ABR
BEAT  BOMRSIMEBEENRE
& o

HEMAZRER  AEBAEAEER
KERER - W RZRETBERN
BRABHE - EERBBREAEE
BERMAIINRBEFRDEERER
BRRERBERRRMIIMN ] -

BREELEMT

2011 2010

211F 20104

TER THT

HK$°000 HK$'000

Total borrowings tEE @ 174,122 74,357
Total capital AR fEE 3,887,580 3,319,953
Gearing ratio BERE B E 4% 2%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

3.

3.3

)

3.

MBmERMEE (F)
BERRER (£)

3.2 Capital risk management (Cont'd) 32 ELRBER(#)
The increase in the gearing ratio during the year ended 31 March 2011 was BE2011F3ABLEFESMH - X
mainly resulted from the new borrowings obtained by a subsidiary in Sri Lanka, BEXEENEZERA—HAEHRNE
Textured Jersey Lanka Limited (“PT Sri Lanka" and formerly known as Textured A A Textured Jersey Lanka Limited
Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited) for its expansion of operations. ([PTEFE/ ] - AiFETextured Jersey
Lanka (Private) Limited) F{F# 7 & &
ZAEEERE -
Fair value estimation 3.3 ATEME
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation AT RABREEES TRAFEARD
method. The different methods have been defined, by level; as follows: ERIA - FRFTENERNEED
T
. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or e HREEZARTEEMSNR
liabilities (level 1). BORERE) (F1E) -
J Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are observable o BRTFIBMEENEREN  ZE
for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that ENBRNTBEEHEMEA
is, derived from prices) (level 2). AAER (A0 ER) s (B
REER) (F28) -
. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market o BENABUFKBEAHREMS
data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3). gromA BETBEEREA) (B
3[E) °
The following table presents the Group's assets and liabilities that are measured at TRERAEE ﬁfgﬂﬁ fR1&201143
fair value at 31 March 201 1. ARG ENDAEE
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
F18 28 $E3E st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THERT THERT THER
Assets 5E
Derivative financial eI A
instruments(Note |6) (i35 16) — 5,669 — 5,669
Available-for-sale At ESRMEE
financial assets(Note |1) (HE&E11)
— Equity securities —EnES 55 — — 55
— Club debentures - EH#ES — 1,741 — 1,741
Total assets EEAR 55 7,410 — 7,465
Liabilities BfE
Derivative financial TESMTA
instruments (Note 16) (HtzE16) — (587) — (587)
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REMBERME (B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3. MBERER (&)
Fair value estimation (Cont'd) 3.3 ATEMH (&)
The following table presents the Group's assets and liabilities that are measured at TRETASEEENAER201053
fair value at 31 March 2010. A31BFENARERE-
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1E F28 FIE a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Assets gE
Derivative financial TEERIE
instruments(Note |6) (KizE16) — 4961 — 4961
Available-for-sale HHECREE
financial assets(Note | 1) (BF&E11)
— Equity securities —RERES 39 — — 39
— Club debentures —ERESH — 1,741 — 1,741
Total assets EEAHE 39 6,702 — 6,741
Liabilities B
Derivative financial TEERIA
instruments (Note 16) (FzE16) — (1312) — (1312)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted
market prices at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker; industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level |. Instruments included in level |
comprise equity investments traded on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and are classified as available-for-sale.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market
data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data,
the instrument is included in level 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

3.

3.3

Fair value estimation (Cont'd)
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

. The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the
estimated future cash flows based on observable yield curves.

. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using
forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date, with the resulting value
discounted back to present value.

. Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to
determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments.

There were no transfers of financial assets between level | and level 2 fair value
hierarchy classifications.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed
below.

(@)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. These estimates are
based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, it
will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful
lives. Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable lives and therefore
depreciation expense in the future periods.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and land use rights

Property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and land use rights are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on the higher of value-in-use calculations or fair values less cost
to sell. These calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Contd)

(b)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and land use rights
(Contd)

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment particularly in
assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may indicate that the related
asset values may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less
costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in assessing impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value used in the impairment test and as a result
affect the Group's reported balance sheet and results of operations. If there is a
significant adverse change in the projected performance and resulting future cash
flow projections, it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to the
consolidated income statement.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycle. Management reassesses these estimates at each
balance sheet date.

Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability of the receivables.
This assessment is based on the credit history of its customers and other debtors
and the current market condition, and requires the use of judgements and
estimates. Management reassesses the provision at each balance sheet date.

Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provisions for income taxes. There are certain
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period
in which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The CODM has been identified collectively as the executive directors of the Company.
The executive directors review the Group's internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. The CODM has determined the operating
segments based on these reports.

As all of the Group’s business operations relate to the manufacturing and trading of
textile products with similar economic characteristic, the executive directors review the
performance of the Group as a single textile manufacturing segment. The operating
segment representing manufacturing of textile products in the PRC, Sri Lanka, the
associate in the PRC and the jointly controlled entities in Bangladesh, aggregately
reported as one operating segment in these consolidated financial statements. The
CODM also reviews the resources allocation and performs performance assessment
based on the entity-wide financial information disclosed below.

Set out below is a summary of key performance indicators reviewed by the CODM on
a regular basis:

ﬁA

5.

MBmERMEE (F)
72 AR
BREERRECEIPRADRIMITES -

HTEZEHAEEZAB2R - AFHERA
THRER - EEEERREERBUTRS

EELENH -

HERARE T REHARARUCERBH

RERBEESHR  BOTESENLRE R
RAREB-HBSERD - BENHLRRH

CHEER B‘JH&%%QT&EMEA

EHERSEHBER  MEHREEL—ME
REDET ,VT/\W&#&% %ﬁ”‘%iﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ

ERTXABBEERENMBER - BHER
DEMETRRA -

BRECEARECOEHNERRBEEC RE
M

2011 2010
2011%F 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET THET
Revenue WA 7,180,664 5883413
Gross profit EF 1,289,959 1,221,764
Gross profit margin (%) EF=E (%) 18.0% 20.8%
EBITDA RS~ BIA - T E R S AT A 1,378,025 1,269,692
EBITDA margin (%) S~ BT FE REHEADE IR (%) 19.2% 21.6%
Operating expenses KR 284,947 319,858
Operating expenses /Revenue (%) AR WA (%) 4.0% 5.4%
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company ~ZN7A &) 4 zx 1 5 A F& 1f i 7l 876,374 803,186
Net profit margin (%) HERI R (%) 12.2% 13.7%
Total assets BEMBTE 5,299,930 4,656,284
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company ZANA Az A AB(GHE =S 3,800,556 3,254,230
Inventories TR 1,501,452 1,173,632
Inventories turnover days FERE R 83 76
Trade and bills receivables JFE L R R L R R 1,109,893 788,820
Trade and bills receivables turnover days P L R X B SR AR R 8 H) 48 43
Trade and bills payables JE - BR R B R R 774,513 805,291
Trade and bills payables turnover days JE 1 B 5 B 52 4 5 ) 2K 49 53
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)

The Group'’s sales by geographical locations are determined by the final destination

Financial Information

REMBERME (B)
5. ZHER (&)

AR

AREZEE D HETINEMIN 2 RE

where the products are delivered: Bt A8
2011 2010
20115 20104
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FEL
PRC H 2,561,417 1,823,245
South East Asia REon 1,683,907 1215817
Hong Kong B8 954,623 1,126,974
Sri Lanka HEEFR 1,111,377 1,048,882
Africa FEM 203,465 95,775
Others Hih 665,875 572,720
7,180,664 5,883,413

Revenues of approximately HK$1,582,637,000 (2010: HK$1,270,135,000) are derived
from a single external customer, accounting for approximately 22% (2010: 22%) of the
Group’s revenue.

The Group's non-current assets (other than financial instruments and deferred tax

W A #1,582,637,000/ 7T (20104
1,270,135,00087T) N REE—IKREF -
EAREBRAL22% (20104 : 22%) °

ARERMRE D ZFRADEE (ERIAR

assets) are located in the following geographical areas: BEHEEERINOT

Group

A5H
2011 2010
20115 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAT
PRC H 1,223,904 1,239,460
Hong Kong B 48,771 46,810
Sri Lanka HMEBFK 191,491 213,064
Others HAth 99,668 102,366
1,563,834 1,601,700
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd) REMBHRRME (F)
6. LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 6. HELMRIFERE
The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent prepaid operating AEERBEE T o T {E A s AR
lease payments and their net book values are analysed as follows: meBnTE . HREFESIMOT
Group
r&E
2011 2010
20115 20106
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET THT
(Restated -
Note2.1(a)(i))
(KES—
HtaE 2.1(a)(i))
At | April, as previously reported R4A18  MAI2R 27,188 27,931
Effect of adoption of HKASI7 (Amendment) REE G LS 175% (BFIX) (3,598) (3,694)
At | April, as restated R4A18 EEF 23,590 24,237
Currency translation differences SNEBMEER 774 21
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payment TAR AL MARIE 2 B 8 (671) (668)
At 31 March R3HA31H 23,693 23,590
Group
ES L
As at 31 March As at | April
R3A3IA R4A IR
2011 2010 2009
2011 F 2010 2009 &
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THEL THET
(Restated - (Restated -
Note2.1(a)(i)) Note2.1(a)(i))
(4 &5 — (i &5 —
ffet 2.1(a)(i)) Bzt 2.1(0)(i))
In PRC, held on: REPE - #E
Leases of between 10 to 50 years FEHNT 102650 F 24 17,299 17,005 17,409
In Sri Lanka, held on: RETE@MFR  #48:
Leases of between 10 to 50 years FHNF10E 0 F 2B 6,394 6,585 6,828

23,693 23,590 24,237
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont(d) FREMBRRNE (B)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7. YNE BERRE
Group r5EE
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture
and equipment
Leasehold Plant and BE Motor Construction
and Buildings  machinery HIEE > vehicles in progress Total
AELH BT HRERHE HARRE RE EBIR @it
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TiEn TR TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
(Restated -
Note2.1(a)(i))
(5~
fiz 2.10)())
At | April 2009 #R200954 A 1R
Cost, as previously reported A A2 = 679,455 1,892,502 190983 25,565 [64643 2953148
ffect of adoption of HKASI7 (Amendment)  FMA RS EANE 178 (BF4) 4,260 = — — — — 4260
Cost, as restated A - EES| 4260 67945 1,892,502 190,983 25,565 l64643 2957408
Accumulated depreciation, as previously ZHHE  MHIZR
reported = (96647)  (1209987)  (I31,735) (15,587) —  (1,453956)
Effect of adoption of HKASI7 (Amendment) — SRAVEAE ST ERE 17% (B31K) (566) — - = — = (566)
Accumulated depreciation, as restated 2itHE - £E5) (566)  (96647) (1209987)  (131735)  (I5567) —  (145452)
Net book amount, as restated REFE  HE] 3694 58808 68255 59.248 9978 164643 1502886
Year ended 31 March 2010 HE201053A31 HILFE
Opening net book amount, ENRERE WA 2
as previously reported — 582,808 682515 59,248 9978 [64643 1499192
Effect of adoption of HKASI7 (Amendment) BB E:EHIE 175 (BATK) 3,694 — - — — — 3,694
Opening net book amount, EOREFE - £E7
as restated 3,694 582,808 682515 59248 9,978 164643 1502886
Currency translation differences NEREEE = 1,403 1,036 (16) | 278 2,702
Additions HE = = 146,844 10,552 2,465 92,465 252326
Disposals & = (5.183) (1,016) (50) (1,900) — (8,149)
Depreciation charge mEZ (%) (28476)  (248,137) (21,307) (3,590) — (301,606)
Transfers B2 — 181,948 26,139 7097 — (215,184) —
Closing net book amount EREETE 3,598 732,500 607,381 55524 6,954 42200 1448159
81

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
EXHRIEZRBRAF



Financial Information

AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)

7.

REMBERME (B)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd) 7. 9¥E- -BREREE (B
Group (Contd) rEE(B)
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture
and equipment
Leasehold Plant and g Motor Construction
and Buildings  machinery HIEE vehicles in progress Total
RELH B BERKR HKARRE RE  ERIE @it
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$O000  HK$O000  HK$000  HK§000  HK$'000
TiEx TiEn TiEx T TiEn TiEx TiEn
(Restated -
Note2.I(a)(i))
(1827~
fizt 2.1(0)())
At 31 March 2010 RH 2010537318
Cost, as previously reported A A2 = 854905 2034313 208619 23,594 42202 3163633
Effect of adoption of HKASI7 (Amendment) — REABAL:TERE 175 (31K 4260 — = = — = 4260
Cost, s restated A - BE3| 4260 854905 2034313 208619 2359% 2200 3167893
Accumulated depreciation, as previously ZiHE  PHIZR
reported —  (122405) (1426932)  (I53095)  (16640) —  (1719072)
Effect of adoption of HKASI7 (Amendment) ~ FMAAEHERAE 175 (BX) (662) = = = = = (662)
Accumulated depreciation, as restated ZitHE - HE5] (662)  (122405) (1426932)  (153095)  (I6640) —  (1719734)
Net book amount, as restated WREHE - HE7| 359 73500 607381 55,524 694 02200 144819
Year ended 31 March 2011 BE20ME3RNALEE
Opening net book amount, EURRFE  PHZR
as previously reported — 732,500 607,381 55,524 6,954 42,202 444561
Effect of adoption of HKASI7 (Amendment) —~ RMEAE:HERE 175 (B314) 3,598 - - - - - 3,598
Opening net book amount, as restated FRAFE LS5 3598 732,500 607,381 55,524 6,954 42200 1448159
Currency translation differences g EE - 29,328 21,088 1281 104 3,561 55,362
Additions hE - 390 99,952 9,104 1,066 91,08 20507
Disposals & - - (179) (10) - - (189)
Depreciation charge MEXH (97)  (33736)  (244057)  (20354) (2909) —  (301,153)
Transfers & — 6,025 53,003 3,006 - (62,044) -
Closing net book amount FRREFE 3,501 738039 537,188 4856 5215 TATAT 1,407,251
At 31 March 2011 R2011%E3A318
Cost A 4260 900094 2264653 226511 25,215 TATAT 3495480
Accumulated depreciation ZiiE (7159)  (162,055) (1,727465)  (177,950) (20,000 —  (2,088229)
Net book amount RERE 3,501 738,039 537,188 4856 5215 TATAT 1407251
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7.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd)

Depreciation expense recognised in the consolidated income statement is analysed as

Financial Information
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REMBERME (B)
7. W% BERRE (B
REARBRAERZHERIINMOT :

follows:
Group
N |
2011 2010
20115 20105
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEx FHT
(Restated -
Note2.1(a)(i))
(#E 35—
HieE 2.1(a)(i)
Cost of sales BHE B 296,881 295419
General and administrative expenses —RRRITHRAXS 4,272 6,187
301,153 301,606

At 31 March 2011, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment pledged to
secure banking facilities of the Group amounted to approximately HK$88,759,000
(2010: HK$86,415,000).

At 31 March 2011, property, plant and equipment of Nil (2010: HK$1,494,000) were
held under a finance lease.

INTERESTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM /(TO) SUBSIDIARIES

RK20114F3A318 + AEBERRTHE MK
BzW%E BRERIENEEAENE
88,759,000% 7T ( 20104 : 86,415,000
o) °

R2011E3831H  BMERNHEEZME |
FERFEHERZH T (2010F © 1,494,000%
o) °

8. WHEARZEREEW () &

Company
NN

2011 2010

20115 20106

HK$’000 HK$'000

TEx FET

Unlisted shares, at cost FEEMBRD - BEA 8 8

Loans to subsidiaries (Note (a)) MEARER (@) 1,786,666 1,287,081

1,786,674 1,287,089

Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note (b)) JE U Y B8 2 AR IR (FTEE(b) 600,000 643,267

Amounts due to subsidiaries (Note (b)) FEFTHT S 2 AR IE (FiEE(b) 4,734 1,062
Notes: ffat :

(@) Loans to subsidiaries are unsecured and non-interest bearing. These loans have no fixed terms of
repayment and are regarded as equity contributions to the subsidiaries.

(b)  The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) FEMBRRME ()
8. INTERESTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM /(TO) SUBSIDIARIES 8. RKEBARzEZEEW () HE

(Cont'd)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2011 and 2010:

Place of
incorporation
/establishment

Issued and fully
paid up share
capital/registered

/42N
L@/

AT RHNMN2011FE2010F3A31MHZEE

MERA :

Equity interest
attributable

loperation capital to the Group
Name of subsidiary =ML BRITREBEZ REBMEN Principal activities
M AR EB EE 2 BAFmER RARE R TEEK
2011 2010
2011 % 20105
Shares held directly:
HERERSG
Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands HKS I 100% 100% Investment holding
RBRAES | AT REZER
Pacific Textiles Overseas Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands HK$ | 100% 100% Investment holding
RBEZEHS | BT REZER
Pacific HK & China Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands HK$ | 100% 100%  Investment holding
REEREHS | AT REEZR
Pacific SPM Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands HK$ | 100% 100% Investment holding
RBRAES | AT REZER
Solid Ally International Ltd. British Virgin Islands HK$ | 100% 100% Investment holding
RERZES | AT REZR
Lehan Resources Ltd. British Virgin Islands HK$ | 100% 100%  Investment holding
REEREHS | AT REEZR
Fast Right Group Ltd. British Virgin Islands US$ 1,000 100% 100% Investment holding
EAEEARAA] RBRAES 1,000 £ 7T REZER
Goodscore Ltd. British Virgin Islands USS| 100% 100% Investment holding
=EERAA RERZEHS | £7T REZR
Product Champion Limited British Virgin Islands US$ | 100% — Investment holding
REERES | £ REZR
Shares held indirectly:
MESERS
Pacific GT Limited (Note(i)) British Virgin Islands US$5,900,000 95% —  Investment holding
(BEEE () RBRAEES 5,900,000 & 7T RE R
Fillattice-Pacific Limited Hong Kong HK$3,900,000 100% [00%  Inactive
B ABRAR B 3,900,000 7T AR
Pacific Textiles Limited Hong Kong HK$ 103,000,000 100% 100%  Trading of
ERHBERLA B 103,000,000 7 7T textile products
hEmE S
Pacific SPM Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$ | 100% 100% Investment holding
BERAESHBIREBERAA B | AT REZR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
INTERESTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM /(TO) SUBSIDIARIES

8.

(Cont'd)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2011 and 2010:

(Contd)

Place of
incorporation
/establishment

Issued and fully
paid up share
capital/registered

Financial Information

AR

REMBERME (B)
8. WMEARzEREEYK () RE

(%)

AT RHNMR2011FE2010F3A31HZEE
WEBAR : (8)

Equity interest
attributable

loperation capital to the Group
Name of subsidiary 3P A BRTREBEZ AEE RN Principal activities
MEAR AR EEE R,/ & iR 25 £ TEX®
2011 2010
2011 %F 20105
Shares held indirectly: (Cont'd)
MERERG : (&)
Pacific (Nansha) Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$22,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
BEX (BY) ZERRAFA BB 22,000,000 /8 7T RARER
PCGT Limited (Note (i)) Hong Kong HK$3,900,000 71.25% —  Investment holding
CBR&E () 5 3,900,000 % 7T REER
Pacific Overseas Textiles Macao Macau MOP1,030,000 100% 100%  Trading of
Commercial Offshore Limited SR Y 1,030,000 J& Pq #& textile products
EXBIGERPIREFERE MEmE S
MRH AR AT
Pacific (Panyu) Textiles Limited PRC Registered/ 100% 100%  Manufacturing
EX (BB) 2 ERAR H paid up capital and trading of
US$89,700,000/ textile products
US$72,700,000 mERHERE S
GV § N
89,700,000 % 7T,/
72,700,000 7T
Pacific/Textured Jersey Ltd. United Kingdom GBP100 100% 100%  Fabrics agency
®E 100 B £ mERE
PT Sri Lanka Sri Lanka Rs1,597,229,000 60% 60%  Manufacturing
LTSRS 597,229,000 and trading of
HEBERREM textile products
MBmEERE S
Note: Bt
(i) Contributions of approximately HK$3,266,000 were received from non-controlling shareholders as (i) HZE201143 A3 BILFEHE - B3R

share capital of these subsidiaries during the year ended 3| March 201 1.

INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN

B3R 443,266,000/ T 2 BBt AZ KB AR

N

°

9. REERNAzERRENRE

ASSOCIATE
Group
s 3L
2011 2010
20115 20106
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FET
Share of net assets (Note (a)) EEEEFE (@) 33,382 27,752
Amount due to an associate (Note(b)) FEfHEE A AIFRIA (MiEE(b)) 2,736 5,250
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) FEMBRRME ()
9. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN 9. REZATZEZEBEMTE (&)
ASSOCIATE (Contd)

(@) Share of net assets (a) EHEEEEE
Movements of share of net assets of an associate is as follows: BB E AR EEFELESNT
Group
*%H
2011 2010
20114 20104
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
At | April n4B1H 27,752 23,201
Currency translation differences SNEEME Z R 1,381 74
Share of profit D183 F 4,249 6,706
Disposal HE — (2229)
At 31 March K3A31A 33,382 27,752

The Group's share of results, assets and liabilities, all of which are unlisted, are as

AEEREFELTARZESE  BER

follows: BEMT
2011 2010

20115 20104

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER FHET

Total assets EERE 46,951 40,890
Total liabilities BEERE 13,569 13,138
Revenue ION 55,348 57,751
Profit for the year FEaF 4,249 6,706

The particulars of the associate as at 31 March 2011 and 2010 are set out as

follows:

Place of

incorporation/
establishment/

R2011FE K2010FE3A31 BB E DAl 2

HERFINT

Equity interest
attributable

operation to the Group
Name of an associate Rl avi Registered capital REE RN Principal activities
NI R EFHE &R AR TREH
2011 2010
20115 20105
SPM Automotive Textile PRC US$7,500,000 33% 33% Manufacturing and
Co, Ltd. B 7,500,000 £ 7T trading of vehicles

EIEXR (BM) "EHE
EmBRAT

2010/2011 Annual Report &%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
9. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN
ASSOCIATE (Contd)

(b)

Amount due to an associate
The amount due to an associate is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable
on demand. The amount is denominated in RMB.

)

9.

Financial Information
B 7% & #

MBRERMEE (F)
RBENR BB RENE ()

(b) ENBEAITFRE
ENBERRRERELR  EFSR
RAEREE - TREAARKTIE -

10. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES 10. AAREHERZER
Group
B
2011 2010
2011 F 20104
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Share of net assets (Note (a)) B EEFE (@) 94,548 24,452
Cash contributed to a jointly controlled entity HRAZHERR S ER
(Note (b)) (PH 3 (b)) — 77,747
Amount due from a jointly controlled JE U 2L R 12 ) B B8 NI
entity (Note (c)) (P 3E(c)) 4,960 —
99,508 102,199

(@)

Share of net assets

Movements of share of net assets of jointly controlled entities are as follows:

(a) EEEERE

EEAREHEREEFE EHNT

Group

A5H
2011 2010
2011 F 20104
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TET
At | April R4aR1RH 24,452 20,141
Currency translation difference SN E Z (3,514) —
Capital injection TE 84,295 12,724
Acquisition of additional interests YRR I ME R 13,293 —
Share of loss DIEEE (23,978) (8,413)
At 31 March R3A31H 94,548 24,452

The Group's share of the results, assets and liabilities of the jointly controlled

entities, all of which are unlisted, are as follows:

AREREAREHNERZFLETAR
ZRE BERABWT:

2011 2010
2011 2010 £

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Total assets LEHE 125,693 104,906
Total liabilities BERE 31,145 80,454
Revenue A 37,647 —
Loss for the year FEEE (23,978) (8,413)

87

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

EXHRERAFRAT



Financial Information

AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
[0. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Contd)

(@)

Share of net assets (Cont'd)

The particulars of the jointly controlled entities as at 31 March 201 | and 2010

are set out as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

Issued and
fully paid up

REMBRERME (&)
10. REFEHER 2 ER (B)
(a) EHEEEZEE)
M20114F &2010F3 831 B £ FEZEHE
B2HEHMT

Equity interest

Name of jointly establishment/ share capital/ attributable Principal
controlled entities operation registered capital to the Group activities
A1 A BRIRAZZ B R
HEZHERER BEEH R BRAEMER IR A i FTRER
2011 2010
2011 F 2010
Amigo Bagladesh Ltd. Bangladesh Taka 390,000,000 49.93% 42.33%  Manufacturing
(Note (i) EIEEl 390,000,000 &+ and trading of
(FEEEG)) textile and
garment products
1 48 B2 P K EE
Ananta Knitwear Ltd. (Note (i) Bangladesh Taka 10,000,000 49.93% 42.33%  Investment holding
(P EE(G)) TR FAE 10,000,000 % RAER
Ever Smart Bangladesh Ltd. Bangladesh Taka 390,000,000 49.93% 42.33%  Manufacturing
(Note (i)) N SR E 390,000,000 & and trading of
(BRFEE () textile and
garment products
Kingston Bangladesh Ltd. Bangladesh Taka 331,282,000 49.93% 42.33%  Investment holding
(Note (i)  INRL A B 331,282,000 &R REER
(BEEG)
Queenston Bangladesh Ltd. Bangladesh Taka 100,000 49.93% — Investment holding
& A E 100,000 & BREER
Elegance Pacific Trading Limited  British Virgin Islands US$| 49.93% 42.33%  Trading of
(Note (i) RBREAES 1357 textile and
BEX=mNBESERAT garment products
(HE=E() MBERKERE S
Fortune Joy International Ltd. British Virgin Islands US$100 51% 51%  Investment holding
BRRERRAA RBREHE 100 E7T REER
King Jumbo Investment Ltd. British Virgin Islands US$5,030,000 51% 519%  Investment holding
RBREUES 5,030,000 % 7T BEER
CPAT (Singapore) Private Ltd.  Singapore US$33,500,000 49.93% 42.33%  Investment holding
(Note (i) N3 33,500,000 37T REER
(BEEG)
Note: Bt

0] On 8 December 2010, the Group acquired an additional 7.6% equity interest in CPAT

(Singapore) Private Limited and no material goodwill is resulted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
0. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Contd)

(b) Cash contributed to a jointly controlled entity
Balance represents cash contributed to a jointly controlled entity and the amount
was subsequently capitalized as share capital of the jointly controlled entity during
the year ended 31 March 201 .

(c)  Amount due from a jointly controlled entity
The amount due from a jointly controlled entity is unsecured, non-interest bearing
and repayable on demand.

. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial Information
B 7% & #

SEHNBBRMETE (&)
10. AREEHER &% (&)
(b) HEEZEFHERES I
EHRABZE2011F3A318 tFEHHE
ARG ERRSEMEEREA LS
HAXREGEERA -

(c) EUtEEZHEERE
FEWAREH B RFRAAEEMN - EF
BRABRER -

1. THEESHEE

Group

r5E
2011 2010
2011 F 20104
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TET
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong B L2 &3 55 39
Club debentures BHES 1,741 1,741
1,796 1,780
At | April R4A1E 1,780 1,760
Reversal of impairment loss A EEER R = 20

Net fair value gains on available-for-sale At EEmEE

financial assets (Note 19) FATME (PHFE19) 16 —
At 31 March R3A31H 1,796 1,780
Market value of listed securities MBS mHE 55 39

The fair values of listed equity securities and club debentures are based on second hand
market prices.

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the HK$.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) FEMBERNE (&)
12. STRUCTURED DEPOSITS AND BONDS 12. BERMERRES
Group
rEH
2011 2010
2011 F 2010 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Non-current: JEENER :
Structured deposits EEMER = 76,319
Bonds (EE — 53,982
— 130,301
Current: BIER -
Structured deposits EEMER 78,092 116,589
Bonds (EE 38,791 77,678
116,883 194,267
116,883 324,568

The structured deposits and bonds are not quoted in active markets.

The structured deposits and bonds are issued by various banks (“issuer”) and are not
insured or guaranteed by any governmental agency or deposit protection schemes.
Therefore, the Group is exposed to general credit risk of the issuer (Note 3.1(b)).These
investments are principal protected by the issuer, interest bearing at variable floating
rates and have maturity dates during the year ending 3| March 2012.

REEERNERRERBMISRE

BEEMEERNESFE TRNERT ([BTA)) %
1 WEREZEMRFHESTRRETS
RESER - At ASEERBTAN—K
EERRE (H:3.1(b) - KERENEETE
ANRE  StERNUA2ZEE  YAHE
201243 A31H It FEHHARIHA -

INVENTORIES 13. BE

Group

rEE
2011 2010
2011 2010 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Raw materials R 1,177,057 893214
Work-in-progress R m 161,399 145,368
Finished goods ZUAK 162,996 135,050
1,501,452 1,173,632

The cost of raw materials and consumables recognised as expense and included in cost
of sales during the year amounted to HK$5,242,340,000 (2010: HK$4,098,582,000).

Inventories pledged as security for the banking facilities available to the Group
amounted to approximately HK$77,808,000 (2010:HK$77,639,000).
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Financial Information

B E R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont(d) FEMBERNE (&)
14. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 14. BERERRERE
Group
AEE
2011 2010
2011 & 2010 4
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Trade receivables JE U AR 3R 845,837 576,687
Bills receivables R R 289,035 234,920
1,134,872 811,607
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables B MR FORE RS (24,979) (22,787)
1,109,893 788,820

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables approximate their fair values.

BYUERERE 2 RAEEATEMAE -

Majority of the Group's sales are with credit terms of 30 to 60 days. Trade and bills
receivables, based on goods delivered date were aged as follows:

AEBABDHE 2ZEEHN FI0E60X -
FEUEFERE R RERXNRHMT

Group

r5E
2011 2010
2011 F 2010 F
HK$000 HK$'000
FTET FTAT
0 - 60 days 0-60X% 973,597 626,575
61 - 120 days 61- 120Kk 143,556 168,724
121 days - | year 121K - | F 16,892 13,046
Over | year B | F 827 3,262
1,134,872 811,607

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills receivables were denominated in

AEERUEFEREZRAERU TERS

the following currencies: 8 :

Group

rEE
2011 2010
2011 & 2010 £
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRT FHET
HKS BT 507,480 362,333
RMB ARE 125,433 56,504
Us$ E 501,959 392,518
Others b=y — 252
1,134,872 811,607

91

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
EXHRIEZRBRAF



Financial Information
Bt 7% & #

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)

4. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Contd)

As at 31 March 2011, trade receivables of HK$42,586,000 (2010:HK$53,817,000) were
past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of customers for whom there is no

recent history of default. These trade receivables are aged as follows:

BAMBERWE (B)
14, EWERERRERE (&)

R2011E3A31H - BBV ERE 2 ERE
542,686,000/ 7T (20104 : 53,817,000
BT BETEFERIY BEERCEERH
DERWBERZERINT -

Group

r5E
2011 2010
2011 % 2010 F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET TET

Past due by: [EFcE:tE

0 - 60 days 0-60XK 42,586 53817

As at 3| March 201 |, trade receivables of HK$82,599,000 (2010:HK$65,759,000) were
impaired and partially provided for. The amount of the provision was HK$24,979,000 as
at 31 March 2011 (2010: HK$22,787,000).The individually impaired receivables mainly
relate to customers which are in unexpectedly difficult economic situations. It was
assessed that a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered. These trade

receivables are aged as follows:

M2011E3A318 © BRENREE 2 EUERR
/582,599,000 7T (20104 : 65,759,000

JT) o R 20114 38 318

CBBEEAR

24,979,000 7t (20104 : 22,787,000
T0) c ZERUEREETEF (BRRERK
REEHCRERSECRE)BH - BilE  B
B EE D ERGIE - ZERMET 2Rk

T

Group

S 3L
2011 2010
2011 F 20104
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET TET

Past due by: BE

0 - 60 days 0-60X 57,580 42,652
61 - 120 days 61-120K 15,864 13,480
121 days - | year 121K -15 8,288 6,433
Over | year HiE1F 827 3,194
82,559 65,759

Movements on the Group'’s provision for impairment of trade receivables are aged as

ARERKERELRERBLEHMT -

follows:

Group

A5H
2011 2010
2011 % 20104
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TET
At | April R4aR1H 22,787 14,886
Currency translation differences SN E Z R 750 —
Provision for impairment of trade receivables FEWBR TR E R R 1,442 7,901
At 31 March M3A3NH 24,979 22,787
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
I4. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Contd)

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been included in
distribution and selling expenses in the consolidated income statement (Note 25).
Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when there is no
expectation of recovering additional cash.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of the
receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

Financial Information

AR

BEMBRERWE (B)

14. EWRIRREE (©8)
ERERNSEENRLREEEFARE
BRZDHEMEERT A (KE25) © s AR
BRE Z B —RERSHE XN CBEINR S

s o

REEEY  FAEERRA LABERR
FREE - AREYESFEMERMERR -

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15. ®¢  ENAFEREMERTE
Group Company
REE KRR
201 | 2010 2011 2010
2011 2010 4 2011 £ 2010 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHT FEx FHT
Rental, utility and other deposits Be  ARARBREMEZRSE 7,813 5,375 — —
Prepayments AR I 11,851 19,774 8 149
VAT receivable 1B (B 7 P W SN IH 25,348 14,064 = —
Other receivables H b U FRIA 1,343 27,277 — -
46,355 66,490 8 149
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables are denominated in the following Be  BANFIERE M RRFIER T 5 &85
currencies: &:
Group Company
REE ARAF
2011 2010 2011 2010
2011 2010 4F 2011 £ 2010 5
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET FHT FHET
HK$ BT 15,186 6,540 8 149
RMB AR 23,460 54,505 — ==
US$ e 7,404 3951 — =
Others Hith 305 1,494 — —
46,355 66,490 8 149

The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and other receivables approximate their
fair values.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of

deposits, prepayment and other receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold
any collateral as security.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd) REMBHRRME (F)
6. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 16. fTEEMIA
Group
r5%E
2011 2010
2011 & 20105
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FET
Non-current portion: FERNERER (D
Forward foreign exchange contracts BHNESK —FEEE
- held for trading
~ Liabilities -RfE — (72)
Current portion: BIERER 17 -
Forward foreign exchange contracts BEHMNESH —RHIEEE
- held for trading
— Assets —EE 5,669 4961
— Liabilities -Rf (587) (1240)
The notional principal amount of the Group's outstanding forward foreign currency REER @ REMIZAEBRBINES D 2%
contracts at the balance sheet date is HK$1,416,106,000 (2010: HK$907,642,000). %A% % 51,416,106,000% 7T (20104 :

907,642,000/ 7T) °

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is the carrying value of REER  GERR ZRERERERNEE
the derivative assets in the balance sheet. BERAZITEEEZREE
17. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 17. RERBTER
Group Company
F£E YN
2011 2010 2011 2010
2011 F 201045 2011 & 20105
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET TERT FET
Cash at bank and in hand BOIRFRERE 926,402 637,665 4,443 2,195
Short-term bank deposits 5 HIRITIF X 21,066 51718 — —
947,468 689,383 4,443 2,195
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is the carrying value of BEAGERBREEARREEABRZRE
the cash and bank balances in the balance sheet. RRITEE R 2 BREE ©
94
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
7. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Contd)

Cash and bank balances are denominated in the following currencies:

Financial Information
B 7% & #

BEAMBERWE (B)
17. BERBITER ()
BeRBAEBRATEHEIE :

Group Company
F&E FAH
2011 2010 2011 2010
2011 20105 2011 & 20105
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET FERT FHET
HK$ BT 382,756 313,109 2,691 1,500
RMB AR 231,820 151,024 — 608
Us$ = 310,908 223,164 1,654 87
Japanese Yen =i 198 89 98
Euro BT 19,969 10 — —
Others Hity 1,817 1,987 — —
947,468 689,383 4,443 2,195
The Group's cash and bank balances denominated in RMB are deposited with banks in AEEUAREIIEZHR 2 RBRITHERTDER
the PRC. The conversion of these RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies RAE 2 RIT o RIBZEAREIEZERRI
and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of B RIEFE A BUE SNEE TR BB B 2
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC Government. SMEE 148 B RARTE
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. RITFRIRBRTE BFERFE T B HRERA
B o
The effective interest rate and maturities of short-term bank deposits are as follows: REBIERERMNEAIHANT
Group
A5H
2011 2010
2011 F 20104
Effective interest rate BFRAI% 2.08% 1.71%
Maturities Elp-il= 1-90days [-90days
Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purposes of the statement of iﬁﬁiﬁﬁ(ﬁ%@%?ﬁﬁﬁjﬁ%%@%b{?lﬁ
cash flows: B
Group Company
A%E ART
2011 2010 2011 2010
2011 2010 F 2011 2010 F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FET TR FET
Cash and bank balances Be RRITEH 947,468 689,383 4,443 2,195
Bank overdrafts (Note 20) RI7EX (FI3E 20) (29,315) (2907) — —
Cash and cash equivalents RekAEEEY 918,153 686,476 AAAR 2,195
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
8. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

REMBERME (B)
18. RARKRAEE

(a)  Share capital (a) BRA&
Group and Company
REBMEEXAF
2011 2010
20115 20104
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET
Authorised: SETE
5,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.001 each S HEE0.001 #JT,2 5,000,000,000 A& 15 5,000 5,000
Issued and fully paid: BEIRER
432,936,000 shares of HK$0.001 each SR HEE0.001 T2 1,432,936,000 A 15 1,433 1,433
(b)  Share premium (b) BA%EE

In accordance with the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

(c) Share option scheme
The Share Option Scheme was approved and adopted by the shareholders of the
Company on 27 April 2007. On 9 July 2007, the Board of Directors approved to
grant options to 88 eligible full-time employees on 18 July 2007 to subscribe for a
total of 22,820,000 shares of the Company at an exercise price of HK$5.04 per
share with vesting period of 3 years. The options are exercisable from 18 July
2010 to 17 July 2017 (both days inclusive), and shall expire on 18 July 2017.

Movements in the above share options are as follows:

(c)

RERSEEAREF22E (196158
=P BEHRIERD) - RGBT
HARTFARFRE » EADARBHE
BERERSEAE  BREENEER
FEBETIMMES

BRENS

B 22 R2007F4B27B AR
B R HLE R o R2007F7H9
B EZ=RER20074F7518H 88
HZEBREBEESRLBERE  mTET
FEZSR4BETRBALR A H
22,820,000 /%10 - BEHMA=F - 8
PRI 2010678 188 £2017F 78
178 (BEEERMAEAR) 7 TR
20175 7R 188 E °

FaEREZZEHNT -

Number of share options

BRESA
2011 2010
2011 20105
Balance at | April R4aB1BZESH 19,410,000 20,790,000
Forfeited B Uk (780,000) (1,380,000)
Balance at 31 March R 3 A 31 B z&H% 18,630,000 19,410,000

The share-based compensation expense recognised in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 3| March 2011 was HK$,446,000 (2010:
HK$6,793,000).

No options were granted or exercised during the period.
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BB EHR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont(d) FREMBRRNE (B)
19. RESERVES 19. fife
() Group (a) A&E
Share-  Available-
Foreign based for-sale
currency com- financial
translation  pensation assets
Capital -~ Statutory reserve reserve reserve Other  Retained
reserve  reserves  SMERE Bt AREE  reerve  earnings Total
BRGE  iERB BE  HERRE SREERR HORE  REEA b
Note  HKPOOO  HKPOOO  HKSOOO  HKPOOO  HKFOOO  HKSOO0  HKFOOO  HK000
W TEx  TEr  TEr  TEx FTEr T TEn Tin
(Note) (Note(ii)) (Noteii))
(W) (Wadi) (& i)
At 1 April 2009 2009544 1H 1,000 55,805 201515 15,424 — (3559) 1152285 1422470
Profit attribute to equity ARTEEHEA
holders of the Company (T - - - — 80318 803186
Curerncy translation differences NERERE = 6,765 = = — 6,765
Share-based compensation R #e i
expense — — 6,793 — — 6793
2008/09 final dividend 2008109 KR & = = = —  (I719%2)  (171952)
2009/10 interim dividend 2009104 Bk E — = = —  (186282)  (186262)
At 31 March 2010 R2010£3A31A 1,000 208280 0207 — (3559) 1597237 1,880980
Representing; RN
Proposed final dividend BEAHRE 243599
Others Eft 353,638
597,237
At 1 April 2010 R201054 518 1,000 208,280 mi7 — (3559) 1,597,237 1,880,980
Profit attribute to equity ARRERFEA
holders of the Company Pl - - - — G634 BT84
Curerncy translation differences NEREER — 112,700 — — — 112,700
Share-based compensation R ME i
expense \ - - | 446 - - [,446
Fair value gains on avalldble-forsdle W EEBHEE
financial assets AT EYE [l - - - - - [3
2009/10 final dividend 200910 KR & - - - - (459) (43599)
2010/11 interim dividend 201011 R EAR & = = = —  (200611)  (200811)
At 31 March 2011 R2011E38318 1,000 320,980 23,663 | (3559) 2029401 2427306
Representing: RN
Proposed final dividend BEABRS 272,258
Others Eft 1,757,143
2029401
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)

19. RESERVES (Contd)

(b)

REMBERME (B)

19. & (&)

Company (b) AAH
Share-based
compensation Retained
reserve earnings Tota
RO E B REEF Agt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT TET TET
At | April 2009 M 2009% 4 A 1H 15,424 390,367 405,791
Profit for the year FE ) A — 500,929 500,929
Share-based compensation expense B {2 Bl & 7 6,793 — 6,793
2008/09 final dividend 2008/09 R 48 & — (171,952) (171,952)
2009/10 interim dividend 2009/10 # HAfR 2 — (186,282) (186,282)
At 31 March 2010 R 2010463 A 31 H 22217 533,062 555,279
Representing: R
Proposed final dividend BEABRE 243,599
Others Hity 289,463
533,062
At | April 2010 M2010F4A1H 22217 533,062 555,279
Profit for the year F 25 F — 897,050 897,050
Share-based compensation expense B {2 Bl & 7 1,446 — 1,446
2009/10 final dividend 2009/10 KR EAfR 2 — (243,599) (243,599)
2010/11 interim dividend 2010/11 H HH B — (200,611) (200,611)
At 31 March 2011 M2011E3HA31H 23,663 985,902 1,009,565
Representing: RN
Proposed final dividend ERAGRE 272,258
Others Hh 713,644
985,902
Notes: Bt st
(i)  Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of shares of ()  BARBERRE2004F11 82 EEMY

0)

subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a reorganisation in November 2004 over the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange thereof.

Statutory reserves represent legal reserve for a subsidiary incorporated in Macau and
statutory reserve for a subsidiary incorporated in the PRC.

In accordance with the Macao Commercial Code, the subsidiary incorporated in Macau,
Pacific Overseas Textiles Macao Commercial Offshore Limited, is required to set aside a
minimum of 25% of its after-tax profit to legal reserve until the balance of this reserve
reaches a level equivalent to 50% of its capital. The amount of legal reserve of the subsidiary
has reached 50% of its capital.

The subsidiary established in the PRC are required to make appropriations to certain
statutory reserves from profit for the year after offsetting accumulated losses from prior
years and before profit distribution to equity holders. The percentages to be appropriated
to such statutory reserve funds are determined according to the relevant regulations in the
PRC or at the discretion of the subsidiary. Such statutory reserves can only be used to
offset accumulated losses, to increase capital, or for special bonus or collective welfare of
employees. These statutory reserves cannot be distributed to equity holders of the
subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
19. RESERVES (Contd)
(b) Company (Contd)
Notes: (Cont'd)
(i) Other reserve represent the difference between the consideration paid to acquire

additional interest in a subsidiary from non-controlling interest and the relevant carrying
value of net assets acquired.

Financial Information
B 7% & #

SEMBERNE (B)
19. % (8
(b) AR (&)
Mg : (%)

(i) EtbREfmER B IF R RN
B AR BIMERE X2 REUR
BRMBBECEERAEZZHE °

20. BORROWINGS 20. 58
Group
rEHE
2011 2010
2011 £ 20104
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET THET
Non-current: FEBNER
Long-term bank loans - secured REBITER - FER 98 848
Current: BER -
Current portion of long-term REARTERNEAH S
bank loans - secured 784 753
Short-term bank loans - secured RHBITER - FER 62,246
Trust receipts bank loans - secured ERBERITESR - FHEA 68,063 20,132
Bank overdrafts - secured BTEY - A 29,315 2,907
Loan from a non-controlling interest of —RIME R A S
a subsidiary (Note(a)) REEZR (F5E(a) 13,616 49,638
Finance lease obligation (Note(b)) RMERERE (Hab) = 79
174,024 73,509
Total bank and other borrowings RITEEMEEEE 174,122 74,357
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the following currencies: fEEZREET T E%ETIE -
Group
rEHE
2011 2010
2011 £ 20104
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FHT
Uss$ e 171,174 69,843
Sri Lankan Rupee (“LKR”) HERREL ([EL]) 2,948 4,435
RMB AR# — 79
174,122 74,357
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) FEMBERNE (&)
20. BORROWINGS (Contd) 20. HE (&)
The borrowings are repayable as follows: BEZBFMANT
Group
r5E
2011 2010
2011 F 2010 F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FET
Within | year 1ER 174,024 73,509
Between | and 2 years 1825 98 848
174,122 74,357
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows: REZRBRMZMT
Group
A5H
2011 2010
2011 % 2010
us$ LKR Us$ LKR
E EL e B
Bank overdrafts BITEX 4.1% 13.0% 4.0% 22.0%
Bank loans and trust RITEHR
receipts bank loans BRRRBRITER = 8.5% — 8.5%

FAERTEECRAEYEAAFERE -

The carrying amounts of all bank borrowings approximate their fair values.

Property, plant and equipment of HK$88,759,000 (2010: HK$86,415,000) and ALEDE - M%&%&ES%%&OOO%E
inventories of HK$77,808,000 (2010: HK$77,639,000) of the Group (Notes 7 and 13) (20104 : 86415,000% 7 ) & 7 &
are pledged as collaterals for the secured bank borrowings of HK$160,506,000 (2010: 77'8\98'0007%73 (?O10¢ : 77163910097_%75)
HK$24,640,000) and the banking facilities of the Group. (HHEE78213) BERAKB 2 HERBRITHE

160,506,000/ 7T (20105 : 24,640,000%
T BRITEE2EMm

—BHBARFEHMESREER
M AR S MR R B AEE
A BNERARERMEER

(a) Loan from a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary a)
The loan from a non-controlling interest of subsidiary is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand.

The balance at 31 March 201 | will be capitalized as share capital of the subsidiary. )‘5’%2\011 %3)%1 H Z%Eﬁ?ﬂ%ﬁ${t%§z
The balance at 31 March 2010 was fully repaid during the year ended 31 March B2 EZH§$ ° ;N201043A318 2/
2011, MER2011E3A3NALFEHAREH
183& -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)

20. BORROWINGS (Contd)

(b)  Finance lease obligation

Lease liability is effectively secured as the rights to the leased asset revert to the

lessor in the event of default.

Financial Information
B 7% & #

GRAMBEBRRKEE ()
20. BE (&)

(b) BEBEERE
ERHREORHEAERNGEEE
HHEA - RHBEARER ERAER
) o

Group

rEE
2011 2010
2011 & 2010 £
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHET

Finance lease obligation - MEHERE-
minimum lease payments: HIEEEHRIE
—Not later than | year — @1 F = 83
Future finance charges of finance lease MEMEREMBZ L — )
Present value of finance lease obligation MEHSAERE = 79
21. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 21. BEFE
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows: FREGEEERRETCHEARATAT
Group
A5H
2011 2010
2011 20104
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FET
Deferred tax assets: BEETRIREE ¢
~Deferred tax asset to be recovered — @@ 12EA%EKEZ
after more than 12 months EERIEERE 6,580 4,950
Deferred tax liabilities: ELHIRAR
—Deferred tax liabilities to be settled — BB 12EAEZMNZ
after more than 12 months EEREEE (29,114) (16,751)
Deferred tax liabilities, net EREFIBERE  FE (22,534) (11.801)
The gross movement in the deferred income tax account is as follows: BEFMEHER 2SS BBMT
Group
AEH
2011 2010
2011 20105
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TET
At | April R4R1H (11,801) (4,825)
Currency translation differences SNEBME EE (769) (40)
Charged to the consolidated PR A Wi & 2 88
income statement (Note 28) (K5 28) (9,964) (6,936)
At 3| March M3H31H (22,534) (11,801)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Contd)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

21.

REMBERME (B)
21. BEFRSEH (B)
AEEBEBER—HBRAERNELHREH

BERBBZEDERWT :

Deferred income tax assets: RILFEHEE
Group
r5E
Provisions
Decelerated tax for doubtful
depreciation debts and
allowance staff benefits
R BLIE REHEET Others Total
mERE k38 Hity A5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FET
At | April 2009 R 200954 A 1H 100 2,660 — 2,760
Credited to the consolidated iR E Ham &
income statement B3 70 2,120 — 2,190
At 31 March 2010 ® 201063 A 31 H 170 4,780 — 4950
Currency translation differences SN E — = I I
Credited to the consolidated R a Ham &
income statement 53 400 1,635 889 2,924
At 31 March 201 | M2011$3A31AH 570 6,415 890 7,875
Deferred income tax liabilities: RIEREHEAE :
Group
A5
Undistributed
profits
Accelerated tax  of subsidiaries
depreciation and an associate Total
allowance Y/ 2 =)
&R SR E N A
wERE R BOBA st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
At | April 2009 R 200954 A1H — (7,585) (7.585)
Currency translation differences SN E Z R = (40) (40)
Charged to the consolidated Rize W&k
income statement % $H — (9,126) (9,126)
At 31 March 2010 R 201053 A31H — (16,751) (16,751)
Currency translation differences SNEME T 4) (766) (770)
Charged to the consolidated Rize s &
income statement X $H (4,349) (8,539) (12,888)
At 31 March 201 | M2011¥3A31H (4,353) (26,056) (30,409)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) FEMBERNE (&)
22. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 22. ENERKREE
Group
%8
2011 2010
2011 & 2010 4
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Trade payables & 13 BR 3R 536,699 536,549
Bills payables [ R & 237,814 268,742
774,513 805,291

Trade and bills payables approximate their fair value.

Credit period granted by creditors generally ranges from 30 to 60 days.

Trade and bills payables based on delivery date were aged as follows:

ENEREREZRAERL

AFEEE -

BT 2EES RN FI0E60X

ENERRREZRRERXEAHMT :

Group

F&EE
2011 2010
2011 £ 20104
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FiET
0 - 60 days 0-60XK 500,271 605,209
61 - 120 days 61-120K 249,209 187,429
[21 days - | year 121K -15 24,093 10,067
Over | year i1 F 940 2,586
774513 805,29 |

Trade and bills payables were denominated in the following currencies: ERNERREEA T EEHE -

Group

s L
2011 2010
2011 F 20104
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
HK$ T 124,114 103,650
RMB AR 68,804 79,258
Uss$ e 581,227 622,383
Others Hh 368 —
774,513 805,29 |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
23. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

REMBERME (B)

23. BEtRERHEMENNE

Group Company
F&E AN
2011 2010 2011 2010
2011 2010 F 2011 2010 F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FET
Accruals for operating expenses HERE 2 Bt IEE 127,896 127,467 3,551 3,077
Payables for purchase of property, M - BERE
plant and equipment BEEREMNX 30,406 53,121 — —
Provision for employee benefit EERABHK
and other related costs Ho Aty A8 R AN 84,952 78,738 — —
Provision for bonus TEA B 32,420 25,000 — —
Provision for customer claims BERERE 18,110 30,762 — —
Others Hith 66,686 39,268 25 32
360,470 354,356 3,576 3,109
Accruals and other payables are denominated in the following currencies: JEFTIEE REMBEMAFREATSIEHEE
Group Company
S 3L NG
2011 2010 2011 2010
2011 F 20104 2011 & 201045
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
HK$ AT 113,094 89,660 3,576 3,109
RMB ARH 214,916 232,773 — —
uss$ XL 32,285 31,745 — —
Others Hity 175 178 — —
360,470 354,356 3,576 3,109
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
24. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS /(LOSSES) — NET

Financial Information

REMBERME (B)
24, RftWAREMGE (BE) -F

AR

2011 2010
2011 20104
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TET
Other income: HA -
Sub-contracting income WA 6,620 9,600
Sale of residual materials HER BRI 36,308 26,866
Rental income HERA 7,480 6,849
Government grants B 7 B 10,332 3,376
Sundry income A 26,673 21,352
87,413 68,043
Other gains/(losses) - net: HElz (B18) —F
Derivative financial instruments- forward foreign TESRTIE—RHINE
exchange contracts held for trading AHFEEER 6,756 8,608
Net foreign exchange losses SNE B HRFEE (3,251) (9.432)
3,505 (824)
90,918 67,219
25. EXPENSES BY NATURE 25. BEMEATHHEX
2011 2010
2011 20104
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHET
(Restated -
Note2.1(a)(i))
(#5 &5 —
fitat2.1(a)(i)
Depreciation charge of property, plant and ME - BERE
equipment (Note 7) wEXH (MiE7) 301,153 301,606
Amortisation expense of leasehold land and & £ 3 1 3h 5 FA A
land use rights (Note 6) BiH (Mizte) 671 668
Cost of raw materials and consumables used R 4 B2 #E i & A B AR
(Note 13) (Ht&E13) 5,242,340 4,098,582
Provision for impairment of trade receivables M IR FUR B R &
(Note 14) (HzE14) ,442 7,901
Employee benefit expense (including EERTIXL (BREEEMe)
directors’ emoluments) (Note 26) (Pfi5E 26) 466,534 388,530
Operating lease payments in respect of land THI RIEFEE
and buildings AR 5,024 4,176
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BERXEZ
equipment (Note 31 (b)) Yoz (PR 31(0)) (1,273) (8,998)
Reversal for slow-moving and obsolete inventories i KRR EFEHE (3,063) (6,359)
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN & 2,163 2,326
Other expenses HinpAs 160,661 193,075
Total cost of sales, distribution and selling expenses ~ $HERA « D $H RHE
and general and administrative expenses 2 B — M RATH R 6,175,652 4,981,507
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)

26. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’

REMBERME (B)
26. BEEAXUE (BRESHS)

EMOLUMENTS)

2011 2010
2011 F 20105
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TR
Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances ITE - % fEARER 430,795 377,972
Termination benefit KRS S EE 885 437

Retirement benefit - defined contribution schemes RRERN —EBEEREE
(Note (a)) (Fft 5% (a)) 14,974 3223
Staff welfare and benefits B TH&M R A& 18,434 105
Share-based compensation expense & 17 Bl & 5 1,446 6,793
466,534 388,530

Retirement benefit - defined contribution schemes

The Company's subsidiary in the PRC is a member of the state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the Government of the PRC.The Group
contributes a certain percentage of the basic salaries of the subsidiary's
employees, and has no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions or
post-retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions. The state-managed
retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to the
retired employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme
managed by an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and its
employees make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees'
earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the
Group's and the employees’ contributions are subject to a cap of HK$ 1,000 per
month and thereafter contributions are voluntary.

The Group has arranged for its Sri Lanka employees to join the Employees’
Provident Fund (“EPF”) and Employees’ Trust Fund (“ETF"). Under these defined
contribution plans, the Group contributes 12% and 3% of the employees’ monthly
gross emoluments to the EPF and ETF, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont(d) FREMBRRNE (B)
26. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS' 26. EERAXE (BEREEMS) (£)
EMOLUMENTS) (Cont'd)

(b) Directors’ emoluments (b) EEME
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 March 2011 is set out BZE2011F3ANBLEEE  §EZZ
below: MemT -
Employer’s

contribution  Share-based

to retirement compensation

Discretionary schemes expense
Fees Salaries bonuses EBikitEZ  KRH#ME Total
g e BREEA  BEIHR X =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THT TR TR TR TR

Ip Ping Im S0l — — — — — —
Choi Kin Chung iz — — — — — —
Wan Wai Loi FER 1,500 2,790 4,969 12 = 9,271
Tsang Kang Po LB 1,000 2,900 4,468 12 — 8,380
Lam Wing Tak MEE 1,000 2,900 4234 12 — 8,146
Lam King Man MEX 1,000 1,710 2,897 12 — 5,619
Lam Hing Chau, Leon MREEE 1,000 1,445 878 12 84 3419
LauYiu Tong 2R% = = = = = =
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael B 150 — — — — 150
Ng Ching Wah hiEE 150 — — — — 150
Sze Kwok Wing Nigel Il & 150 - - — — 150
5,950 1,745 17,446 60 84 35,285
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 3| March 2010 is set out BZ201053A31BILEE §ESZ
below: MemT -
Employer’s
contribution ~ Share-based
to retirement compensation
Discretionary schemes expense
Fees Salaries bonuses BAGEZ RHME Total
ne e MEBTL  EIER X @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TRT TET TET TET
Ip Ping Im Sl — — — — — —
Choi Kin Chung iz = = = = = =
Wan Wai Loi FER 1,500 2,790 5,786 12 — 10,088
Tsang Kang Po LB 1,000 2,900 4,099 12 — 8011
Lam Wing Tak MEE 1,000 2,900 4317 12 — 8,229
Lam King Man MEX 1,000 1,730 2,701 12 — 5443
Lam Hing Chau, Leon (appointed ~ #RELgt (3 2009

on 21 September 2009) 9A 21 BZfF) 583 820 480 7 148 2,038
Ho Hsiang Ming, James BRI (12009 %

(resigned on 28 August 2009) 8 H 28 ARHT) — — — — — —
LauYiu Tong 2Rz = = = = = =
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael B 150 — — — — 150
Ng Ching Wah hiEE 150 — — — — 150
Sze Kwok Wing Nigel MBI & 150 — - — — 150

5533 11,140 17,383 55 148 34,259
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) FEMBERNE (&)
26. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS' 26. EERAXHE (BRESEMS) (£)
EMOLUMENTS) (Cont'd)

(c)  Five highest paid individuals (c) HTEREHFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the BE2011ER2010F3A3MBLEFE
year ended 31 March 2011 and 2010 are directors, whose emoluments are AEBZSERHEATRES  BE2M
reflected in the analysis presented above. SER LI AR -
27. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 27. BBRARRA
2011 2010
20115 20106
TER TET
HK$°000 HK$'000
Finance income: FBWA
— Bank interest income —RITH B A 4,710 4,946
Finance costs: BT
— Bank loans and overdrafts —RITERREX 3,219 3,508
— Finance lease obligations -~ RMEREAE 4 325
3,223 3,833
28. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 28. FifEHiAIX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2010:16.5%) on the BARNGE A BF NG BRI IZ
estimated assessable profits for the year. 16.5% (20105 : 16.5%) fEL & & -
The new Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China standardises the HEE AR AEMBIR B X MEHEB200851 A
corporate income tax (“CIT") rate to 25% with effect from | January 2008. However, 1R —EMEH (REMEH])BEA
the subsidiary continues to enjoy a 50% reduction in the CIT rate in respect of certain 25% ° AT - RREROH B ERO - BRA
portion of its taxable profit up to 31 December 2009 in accordance with the applicable BERMIERHBRR - ZMBAR A5
tax regulations as a result of additional capital injections made in prior years to the DEAB N BEERSZRH0%EEMGEH
subsidiary. The tax rate for the year ended 31 March 2010 is 25%. BEZE2009F12A318 « B E2010F3A31
HIEFEZHRER25%
The subsidiary established and operated in Sri Lanka, PT Sri Lanka, is exempted from REBHRKLREE 2B RPTE 28
income tax on its profits for |5 years from the first year of commencement of RE2001F9A R A B FEEE AFE R
commercial operations in September 2001. After the expiration of the tax exemption 165  EREHHGFBMAEE - 2HB
period, the profits of PT Sri Lanka will be charged at the rate of 12% of a period of 8 BinE  PTHERROMBERRTE12%4A
years. HABF B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
28. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Contd)

REMBERME (B)
28. FiHiBX (8)

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income statement represents:

B RBERIR ZFABHRS :

2011 2010
21 1F 20104
TER THT
HK$'000 HK$'000

Current income tax BER TS B
~ Hong Kong profits tax —BEBNEHR 120,180 94,660
- T —BEMREH 67,415 48,084
— Overprovision in prior years —BEFERERE (14,121) —
Deferred tax (Note 21) IR (T 21) 9,964 6936
183,438 149,680

The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount
that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the

RAKBERIABHATEN 2 IR RIZER RS
AEBENZMETIREFAE I EREEL

consolidated entities as follows: ZBME
2011 2010
20115 2010
TR TAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Profit before income tax P 1% 14 Al 1 1,077,688 968,53
Tax calculated at weighted average domestic tax rate #ZEBREBABRR 2
applicable to profits in respective countries MEEF H R EGFE 2 FIA 184,206 138,904
Income not subject to tax BAERTU R (3,003) (1274)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes PAHB AR 7817 2,924
Overprovision in prior year BAEFEREEE (14,121) _
Withholding tax on the distributable AEERME A A
retained earnings of the Group's subsidiaries A 93 AR B v | 0 TR A B 8,539 9,126
183,438 149,680
The weighted average domestic applicable tax rate was: MEFEFBERBERNT
2011 2010
20115 2010
Weighted average domestic applicable tax rate INET G T AT R 17.1% 14.3%

The increase in weighted average domestic applicable tax rate is caused by the increase
in the PRC tax rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
29. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@)

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of shares in issue
during the year.

GAMBBRRWEE ()
29. BREF

(a)

&x
BRERBMZARRRERTE ARE
it A B 4 A E B AT A (0 I04E ¥ 9 BT
g .

2011 2010
20115 2010
TER TET
HK$°000 HK$'000

Profit attributable to equity holders ZAVNGIE: ESES T DN
of the Company JE 1% 7 876,374 803,186

Weighted average number of shares B BTG MR

in issue (thousands) FHE (THR) 1,432,936 1,432,936
Basic earnings per share (HK$ per share) FREARRT (FKRAT) 0.6l 0.56

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number
of shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential shares. The
Company has one category of dilutive potential shares, which is shares options.

As the exercise price of the share options granted by the Company was higher
than the average market price of the Company's shares for the year ended 31
March 2011, those outstanding share options granted, which amounted to
18,630,000 shares as at 31 March 2011 (2010: 19,410,000 shares) have no dilutive
effect on earnings per share. Accordingly, diluted earnings per share is the same as
basic earnings per share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont(d) FREMBRRNE (B)
30. DIVIDENDS 30. RE
2011 2010
20115 2010
TER THET
HK$°000 HK$'000
Interim dividend paid of HK 14 cents BEIRAE 14102 R ERR S 200,611 186,282
(2010: HK 13 cents) (Note(i)) (2010 4F : ¥ 1340U) (FHEEG)
Special dividend paid of nil cents BIRMEBZI 2 FRIKRA
(2010: HK 22 cents) (20104 « A% 22{l) — 315,246
Proposed final dividend of HKI9 cents BORAEE 1910 2 REIR S
(2010: HK17 cents) (Note (ii)) (2010 4 : ¥ 17 (U) (B =E(i) 272,258 243,599
472,869 745,127
Notes: B
(i) On 25 November 2010, the Board of Directors of the Company declared an interim dividend of (i) R20105 11258 * ARBIEER/EREBE
HK 14 cents per share, totalling HK$200,61 1,000 for the six months ended 30 September 2010. 2010F9A30H IE/AME A I Bk S B R E %
The amount was paid on 6 January 201 1. 144l - & #£200,611,0008 ¢ - ZEREER

2011F1A6A X fT -

(i) On 24 June 2011, the Board of Directors of the Company proposed a final dividend of HK19 cents (i)  R2011F6A24B ARAIZEZREABE
per share for the year ended 3| March 201 1. This proposed dividend is not reflected as dividend 2011EIANBIEFERBREBREK 19
payable in these financial statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings il o BRASRES ERZENBRE LRI AE
for the year ending 31 March 2012. HIRE - BHREBZE201263A31BILFE 2R

BEFNZHEHRR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)

3I.

Cash generated from operations

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

REMBHRRME (F)
31. =) IE 37 /)Ibi%l}ﬁ%}

(a) REXBHELRS

2011 2010
2011%F 2010
TER TAT
HK$°000 HK$'000
(Restated -
Note2.1(a)(i))
(#5E5—
Bi72.1(a)(i))
Profit before income tax FFT 1% 75t AT )t 1 1,077,688 968,531
Adjustment for: ATF&IBZFAEE -
Share of profit of associates JRE A Bk i 1 B A (4,249) (6,706)
Share of loss of jointly controlled entities FEIG R BB EE 23,978 8413
Depreciation of property, MmE - HER
plant and equipment HiENE 301,153 301,606
Amortisation of leasehold land and THE £ 3 o 43
land use rights {F P 8 671 668
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE  BER
plant and equipment HEZFE (1,273) (8.998)
Interest income FEMA (4,710) (4,946)
Interest expense F B A% 3,223 3,833
Share-based compensation expense B 17 Bl & =2 1,446 6,793
Reversal of impairment loss on At ESRMEEY
available-for-sale financial assets A E R R — (20)
Operating profit before working capital changes ‘& Lé/\“@m 28 A 1,397,927 1,269,174
Increase in inventories M (327,820) (411,992)
Increase in trade and bills receivables EH&ZEE eSS (321,073) (188,690)
Decrease /(Increase) in deposits, prepayments 12 & + T 5RIE R E A
and other receivables JEMGRIER L/ (38m) 20,135 (48,201)
Increase in derivative financial instruments TSI A M (1,433) (2,114)
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and bills payables  E{TBR 7% & Z & ﬂ/ /i' jill (30,778) 253,859
Increase/(Decrease) in trust receipts loans 1 EhEETEM ( 47,931 (25,303)
(Decrease)/Increase in accruals [EEtIEE &ﬁﬂﬁﬁgﬁ%ﬁ’\lﬁ
and other payables (R2) /i")JD (24,292) 103,242
(Decrease)/Increase in amount JFE 1 Bk i 1 B3R
due to an associate CRA) /i*bﬂ (2,514) 5250
Cash generated from operations REXBRELRS 758,083 955,225
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
3l. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Cont'd)

(b)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposals of

Financial Information
B 7% & #

REMBERME (B)
3. BABERERME ()

(b) RHESELRBRA  HEWX HE

property, plant and equipment comprise: RRBHRERECRE

2011 2010

20115 2010

TER TET

HK$’000 HK$'000

Net book amount (Note 7) BREHE (FisE7) 189 8,149
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE  BER

plant and equipment (Note 25) FEz "= (M5 25) 1,273 8,998
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BEX

plant and equipment R PTIF A 1,462 17,147

Acquisition of a subsidiary

On 18 May 2009, Solid Ally International Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, acquired the remaining 50% equity interest in Fillattice-Pacific Ltd. for a
cash consideration of approximately HK$2,229,000. Consequently, the Group's

equity interest in Fillattice-Pacific Ltd. was increased from 50% to 100%.

(c) KBE-HKHBAR
R2009F5818H » —HARQ A2 &}
J& 2 A]Solid Ally International Ltd.JA
B&RE2229008TKREENER
DRI TE0% s - At AEBERE
NERRBIEZHL0%EMZE100% °

Details of net assets acquired are as follows: WEEEFEFENT
HK$'000
FTET
Purchase consideration BERE
— Cash paid —BENRE 2,229
The assets and liabilities as of 18 May 2009 arising from the acquisition are as 200955 R 18H MK EMmEE 2 & &
follows: EBEMAT :
Acquiree’s
Fair value carrying amount
ATE WEBFNERELE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTET
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkReEEY 4613 4613
Other receivables H 8 W AR K 14 14
Other payables Ho At JEABR X (169) (169)
4,458 4,458
Total purchase consideration FEE RSN 60% 5
for additional 50% equity interest RELE 2,229
Purchase consideration settled in cash BEERBUREIM 2,229
Cash and cash equivalents in WENBARRE R
subsidiary acquired ReEEY (4613)
Cash inflow on acquisition of a subsidiary WiE—EHEARBRERA (2,384)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2011, the Group and the Company had no material contingent liabilities
(2010: Nil).

33. COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments
Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet date but not yet incurred

RAPBRERME (B)
32. ZEEE

R201143A310 + AEBEARRWES K

HEEE (20105 : &) -

33. BAEARE
(a) BARERE

REERARFTORREL ZEARFRXN

is as follows: T
2011 2010
20115 20104
TER TAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Contracted but not provided for: BRIKEREE -
Property, plant and equipment mE - BEREE 89,570 58,528

As at 31 March 2011 and 2010, the Group had authorised the injection of
approximately RMB2 1,880,000 as capital of an associate to be established in the
PRC.

As at 31 March 2011, the Group did not have any significant share of capital
commitments of its associate and jointly controlled entities (2010: Nil).

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had authorised the injection of approximately
HK$ 180,666,000 (2010: HK$152,820,000) as capital of the jointly controlled
entities.

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had authorised the injection of capital of
HK$621,647,000 (equivalent of US$79,895,000) into subsidiary in Vietnam.

(b) Operating lease commitments
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases of land and buildings, as follows:

(b)

M2011F82010F3F318 * KEEE
BRI — RGN R B 2B & AR
£ #4721,880,000 A R# o

R20114E3A318 » REBHE A7) &
HFER 4B Y & B KB AKIE (2010
FE)

R2011E3A31H » AEBEE#L AR K
A2 % 88 ) & 49 5180,666,000/% 7T
(20104 : 152,820,000/ 7T) °

R2011E3A31H » AEEE AR
M BRI EE621,647,000/ T (%
#479,895,000% 7T) ©

BERNER
AEBRBEIHRET 2 PAHELE
BORRKERERREENT :

As lessee: AN
2011 2010
20115 20106
TER THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Not later than | year TR 1F 533 593
Later than | year and not later than 5 years BB FETHEBLF 50 380
583 973
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)
33. COMMITMENTS (Contd)
(b) Operating lease commitments (Contd)

As lessor:

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

Financial Information

REMBERME (B)
33. BAREAE (&)
(b) REMNEE (E)

HAEA

AR

TARBELERORRRERER AR

leases as follows: IR
2011 2010
20115 2010
TER TET
HK$°000 HK$'000
Not later than | year B F 7,900 7,163
Later than | year and not later than 5 years B8 1 FETBB L F 23,310 28,650
31,210 35813

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

34. EBEALIRS

EM—T AN ERIEEEN 77 &
HR— T2 MBREERRITEEATEN
B EATRRERBME - HEMBEALTH
REHRAREATE  AITMRERARE -

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to
control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are
subject to common control or common significant influence.

(@) The following transactions were carried out with related parties: (a) BEARMEATETZRZOT:
2011 2010
20115 2010
TET TAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Sales of goods HEEM
Related parties (Notes (i) and (ii)) BREAL (P a0 i) 13,920 5721
A jointly controlled entity (Note (ii)) HEZFHEE (MIEG) 17,133 3,446
31,053 9,167
Rental income HEWA
An associate (Note (iii)) B | (B EE i) 7,449 6,836
Sub-contracting income HEMA
An associate (Note (ii)) B (B EE() 6,389 9,533
115 Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

EXHRERBRAT



Financial Information
Bt 7% & #

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) FEMBRRME ()
34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd) 3. EREALRS (&)
(b) Year-end balances (included in trade receivables) arising from sales of goods, (b) EHEER HEUWARIBUAEE

rental income and sub-contracting income: ZHRESS (GIABRERR) ¢
2011 2010
20115 20104
TER TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Receivables from related parties FEUE B A T3R8
Related parties (Note (i) BEEAL (KHIFEG)) 614 232
Payables to related parties RN EBEALRIEA
An associate (Note 9(b)) B Al (BTEE 9(b)) 2,736 5,250
(c) Key management compensation (c) FEEEBEAEMSE
2011 2010
20115 2010
TER TAT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Wages, Salaries, bonus and allownances I%& - #e {402 35,141 35,364
Retirement benefits - defined RRERN —EBEEREE
contribution schemes 60 60
Share-based compensation expense & 17 Bl & 3 84 253
35,285 35,677
Notes: B aE -
(i)  Companies controlled by Mr. Henry Choi Wing Kong, son of Mr. Choi Kin Chung, a director (i) RARAEFEEPEE 2R FEER

FERHZRARBARAEREAL ©

i Goods are sold and sub-contracting income are received at prices mutually agreed by both (i) EmEKISBRADERTEEKRBE
g p y agreed by \
parties in the ordinary course of business. FREFTHEZBREE °

(i) Rental income received from an associate is charged at an average of RMB534,000 per (i)  BZE201FIANALEFE  mBELD
month for the year ended 3| March 2011 (2010: RMB502,000 per month). AR @ Yt AR M98 A534,000A
R H (20105 : & A502,000A &

) -

of the Company, are related parties of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)

35.

36.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company to the extent of approximately HK$897,050,000 (2010:
HK$500,929,000).

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

The Group proposes to spin-off a subsidiary, PT Sri Lanka, for separate listing on the
Main Board of the Colombo Stock Exchange. This proposed separate listing has been
approved by the Colombo Stock Exchange and it is anticipated that the listing will be
completed by August 201 I. As at 31 March 2011, the Group had 60% equity interest in
PT Sri Lanka.

In connection with the proposed separate listing, the Group disposed 83,000,000 shares,
representing 14.43% of equity interest in PT Sri Lanka under a pre-IPO private
placement in May 201 |. Upon the listing, PT Sri Lanka will issue new shares to the public
and the equity interest held by the Group is expected to be further diluted to 40%.

The directors consider the above transactions as a single transaction. In accordance with
HKAS 27 (Revised), the Group has remeasured its 40% retained interest in PT Sri Lanka
to its fair value with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. Based
on the planned listing and stock offering of PT Sri Lanka, the unaudited financial
information of PT Sri Lanka and subject to the relevant fair value evaluation at the date
of disposal, the Group anticipates to recognise a gain on disposal of approximately
HK$230,000,000 and recognise a goodwill in interest in associates for the remaining
40% equity interests in PT Sri Lanka of HK$150,000,000 in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ending 31 March 2012.
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REMBERME (B)

35.

36.

BEFAAREERN
ARREREEARME RN B REARA
897,050,000/ 7t (20104 : 500,929,000%
TE) °

HEHEBRESE
AEEREHSHF—HNBARPTHERRR
R E AT S ERBIL LT o hEEBY
IR BEERGEESFR SAE - WBH
EmM2011E8ATEK ° K20115E3A318 -
AEBHEPTHER R 260%HES ¢

BREEFEY LT AEER2011F5B U E
RAREBEERMFARE © H£83,000,000
B H14.43%KPTEERSRR#E - — B £
W PTHEERBRARBETHN  MAE
EREZESEHGE —SEHEZI0% -

EERBLARSGEE—RG - BRERESH
RIS 2757 (1B183]) - REBEEHEPT
HEBER240%REBER  AEAABEE
AREEEZHERAEE BEPTHER R
B EHERERT PTEH RZAKE
ZEEER  BHERREFEBEBAATEE
FE ASEEHBRRNLEREDN
230,000,000/ 7T + W HER T B E20124 3R
SNHUEFEGAVERR G ENAERR
2 5PTH E#H F H & 40%K% # B
150,000,000 7T ©
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Financial Summary

MR

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

RERR

Year ended 3| March,
HZ3H3THLEE

201 | 2010 2009 2008 2007
20115 2010 20094 20084 20074
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBx FET FET FET FET
Revenue A 7,180,664 5,883,413 4734816 4,280,646 4,203,357
Gross profit EF 1,289,959 1,211,764 686,957 696,887 922,091
Profit attributable to: THALRIEET
Equity holders of the Company ~ AR AIHEZIFA A 876,374 803,186 376,515 392,093 555,698
Non-controlling interests FEAR bl 1 17,876 15,665 4,091 4721 7,948
894,250 818,85! 380,606 396,814 563,646
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET GABEERER
As at 3| March,
RW3A318
201 | 2010 2009 2008 2007
20115 20104 20094 20084F 20074
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBx FET FET FET FET
Non-current assets FERBEE 1,572,210 1,738,731 1,572,225 1,571,284 1,237,790
Current assets MEEE 3,727,720 2,917,553 2,813,305 2,831,677 1,803,121
Total assets BEERE 5,299,930 4,656,284 4,385,530 4,402,961 3,04091 1
Current liabilities mEAE 1,383,138 1,318,660 1,098,795 1,122,394 1,132,831
Total assets less current liabilities & EAAERTHE E 3,916,792 3,337,624 3,286,735 3,280,567 1,908,080
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 29,212 17,671 125,434 394,558 416,587
Total equity R 3,887,580 3,319,953 3,161,301 2,886,009 1,491,493
Net current assets TEEEFE 2,344,582 1,598,893 1,714,510 1,709,283 670,290
Equity attributable to: TH AT
Equity holders of the Company ~ AR AIHEZIFA A 3,800,556 3,254,230 3,110,966 2,839,765 1,440,745
Non-controlling interests FEPR Bl 1 87,024 65,723 50,335 46,244 50,748
3,887,580 3,319,953 3,161,301 2,886,009 1,491,493
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In this annual report (other than the Independent Auditor's Report and Financial Information),
unless the context otherwise requires, the following expression shall have the following

meanings:
“2011 Financial Year”
"AGM "

"Articles "

"“Board

"“Brandix “

"CG Code "

"Company”

“Crystal”

“Directors *
"“Group “
"INED "
“Listing Rules *

“Model Code *

"Pre-IPO Private
Placement”

"Proposed Listing”

"Proposed Spin-off"

"Prospectus

for the year ended 3| March 201 |
Annual general meeting of the Company

the Articles of Association of the Company, as amended from time to
time

The board of Directors of the Company

Brandix Lanka Limited, a company with limited liability and
incorporated in Sri Lanka

the Code on Corporate Governance Practices

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited, an exempted company incorporated

in Cayman Islands with limited liability, the shares of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange

Crystal International Limited, a company incorporated in British Virgin
Islands with limited liability

the director(s) of the Company

the Company and its subsidiaries

the independent non-executive Directors

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
the placement of part of the PT Sri Lanka Shares held by Pacific

Textured Jersey Holdings Limited and Brandix to certain institutional
and non-institutional investors before the PT Sri Lanka PO

the proposed listing and dealing in shares of PT Sri Lanka on the Main
Board of the Colombo Stock Exchange

proposed spin-off of PT Sri Lanka for separate listing on the Main
Board of the Colombo Stock Exchange

the prospectus of the Company dated 7 May 2007
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HERAAR

RAEHRA (BIGZEMRERTBERBRN) - B

ENEZEME THAZEEUTES -

RONEHBFE] BHE201MFIAINALEFE

(RRBFRE] ARRIZBRBFRE

ExEREN ARARTEER 2 ARMEKE
R

EE3=] ARFIZEER

[Brandix] Brandix Lanka Limited * —F&
ENEBFRAMKL2ERA
5

[EEERTH] GEERFRTA

ENG BERGBERBERAR - —F
RASHEFMR I 2ZEHE
BRAR - EROAEZAE
m

(&7t RBEBRERAA - —HER
BREAHESHMRIZERA
2

[E%] ARRCES

[R&EE] ARAIREMNBAF

[(BUERTEE] AQAFMBUIENTES

[ ErsR Al BRmES EMRA

27l LAAREZETBERR SN
% 5F Al

[BERRRBEEN METHEEEREREER

FLABRE] £ dPacific Textured Jersey
Holdings Limited} Brandix
BB ZBAPTH 2R R
EBRPTHI 2B RERRRE
EREST

[ L) PTH 2B RO N BHRE ESH
REMERBELT

Bef5xid ER A PTH R R R
BHEX S EREL LT

(BRER] ARERN200745 A7AZ A

RERE
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Glossary
HERAAR

"PT Sri Lanka * Textured Jersey Lanka Limited, a limited liability company incorporated
under the laws of Sri Lanka

"PT Sri Lanka IPO™” Initial public offering of new PT Sri Lanka Shares to be issued by PT
Sri Lanka for subscription by the public in Sri Lanka incidental to the
Proposed Spin-off

“SFO Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong
Kong)
“Shares * Shares issued by the Company, with a nominal value of HK$0.001 each
"“Share Option The share option scheme adopted by the Company pursuant to the
Scheme " written resolutions of the Shareholders of the Company passed on 27
April 2007

"Stock Exchange " The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.
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[PTHEFRER
AREE]

(&% R M E &)

RN ol

(B8R At 2l

B 22 Ffr |

Textured Jersey Lanka
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